




  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

1a 



      

 

Middleton City Council Meeting June 16, 2021 Page 1 
 

MIDDLETON CITY COUNCIL 
JUNE 16, 2021 

 
The Middleton City Council meeting on June 16, 2021 was called-to-order at 5:33 p.m. by Mayor 
Rule.  
 
Roll Call: Mayor Rule, Council President Kiser, Council Members Huggins, Garner and were all 
present. Council Member O’Meara was absent. 
 
Pledge of Allegiance, Invocation: Chris Grooms 
 
Action Items 

A. Approve Agenda 
 
Motion: Motion by Council President Kiser to approve the Amended Agenda as posted June 
15, 2021 at 5:00 p.m. Motion seconded by Council Member Garner and approved 
unanimously. 

 
Action Items 

1. Consent Agenda (items of routine administrative business) 
a. Consider approving minutes for City Council June 2, 2021 regular meeting. 
b. Consider ratifying payroll for June 4, 2021 in the amount of $$78,079.45 
c. Consider approving accounts payable thru June 9, 2021 in the amount of 

$252,702.50. 
 
Mayor Rule called the items. Council President Kiser gave a summary of accounts payable 
payments. Explained that some items were pass through items such as Republic Services. 
 
Motion: Motion by Council President Kiser approve Consent Agenda Items 1a, b and c. 
Motion seconded by Council Member Garner and approved unanimously. 
 
2. Consider approving two quotes from Integrity Inspection Solutions for Phase 2 
CCVT Sewer Line cleanout and repairs in an amount not to exceed $40,000 and 
$11,875.00. –Bruce Bayne  
 
 Mayor Rule called the item Bruce Bayne presented the quotes and an explanation of the 
project. Bruce explained that there is $50,000 in the budget for these projects.  Integrity 
Inspections Solutions will continue in Phase 2 to look for issues in the sewer system 
including blockages and leaks.  During the previous phase Integrity Solutions identified a 
large intrusion of irrigation water into the sewer line. This phase will be working in the older 
areas of town to identify lines that need to be fixed the cost for this is not to exceed $40,000.  
The amount not to exceed $11,875 will be used to repair the line at Piccadilly Park where it 
crosses the creek.  There are roots that have invaded the line and need to be removed and 
the line repaired.  
 
Motion: Motion by Council President Kiser to approve the quotes from Integrity Inspection 
Solutions for Phase 2 CCVT Sewer line cleanout and repairs in the amounts not to exceed 
$40,000 and $11,875. Motion seconded by Council Member Huggins and approved 
unanimously. 
 
 



      

 

Middleton City Council Meeting June 16, 2021 Page 2 
 

3. Public Hearing: Applications from Falkirk Holdings LLC & Todd Campbell for 
Rezone and Development Agreement with respect to the Stonehaven project 
planned for an 11.18-acre parcel located at 0 Hartley Lane (Tax Parcel 
#34443013). Applicant is seeking a rezone of a portion of the parcel from C-1 
to M-F to permit the future development of a maximum of 84 townhome lots. – 
Roberta Stewart 

Mayor Rule opened the public hearing at 5:43 p.m. and City Planner, Roberta Stewart 
presented a staff report on the project (Exhibit 1). 

Applicant presentation—Jay Walker presented a PowerPoint presentation on the 
proposed project (Exhibit 2). 

Questions to Applicant:  
Mayor Rule: The mayor asked what he meant when he said the project was “what the 

mayor desires”; the mayor did not want to be quoted on record for something he did not say. 
Mr. Walker clarified that he was referring to the project being in alignment with the 
comprehensive plan of the city as developed by the previous mayor and city council. 

Council President Kiser: Requested clarification on the statement that the Willis/Hartley 
would not get built without this project.  Mr. Walker clarified that it would not get built at this 
time or in a timely manner if this project doesn’t happen. 

Applicant Presentation ended at 6:17 p.m. Mr. Walker requested that the rebuttal be 
shared with the owner of the property.  

Mayor Called for comments in favor of this project: 
Todd Campbell: He stands behind the presentation by Jay Walker.  This is a high quality 

project. It will help to improve the concerns of the city regarding traffic. The traffic will be 
improved at Hartley/Willis and also Hartley/Highway 44.  Mr. Campbell also committed to 
contribute an additional $100,000 towards the Hartley/Highway 44 intersection if this project 
is approved. 

Mayor called for questions for Mr. Campbell and there were none. 
Renee Watson: Expressed approval for the project.  She has looked at the other projects 

completed by the applicant/builder and they are beautiful. She looks forward to the 
improvements to the area due to this project. 

Mayor Comments: The mayor stated that Ms. Watson was originally the owner of the 
property in this project. 

David Cliché: Spoke representing the Stonehaven neighborhood in favor of the project. 
In his past experience he has found that commercial has more traffic than residential.  The 
group feels that the project would stabilize the values of their homes. They fully support the 
project.  

Kelsee Thompson: In favor of the project. No further comments. 
Kip Thompson: In favor of the townhomes—they are beautiful. The proposed project is 

directly adjacent to his property.  He feels that the townhomes would be much nicer next to 
his property than commercial would be. The additional funds for the improvements to 
Hartley/HWY 44 would be very helpful in solving the traffic issue at that intersection. 

Mayor Called for neutral comments of this project: 
Diane Cummings: Stated that she is neutral. No further comments. 
Mayor Called for comments in opposition of this project: 
Dana Furrow: Just stated that they are opposed to the project. 
Sandy Sinclair: Suggested that the project be aimed towards a 55 and over community.  

Personal opinion is that the project won’t be good there.  Her experience coming from 
California is that people will buy the condos and rent them out. Rentals will bring down the 
value of the adjacent properties.  Traffic in the area is already a “nightmare” this project 
would make it worse. 



      

 

Middleton City Council Meeting June 16, 2021 Page 3 
 

Comments in opposition of this project cont.: 
Carlene Thie: She attended a large council meeting two years ago—this area was going 

to be C-1 Light commercial. The Hartley intersection is “deadly” and doesn’t need more traffic. 
Light commercial closes early so there would be little evening and weekend traffic. She feels 
that Jay Walker bullies people—trying to manipulate them. She feels that overbuilding will be 
detrimental—the developer is already committed to help pay for infrastructure. 

Mike Grafe: Stated that he is opposed to this project. He stated that the property started 
as R-3 and the developers requested to have it changed to C-1.  He feels that an assisted living 
facility would be good. He doesn’t like multi-family dwellings. He feels that the roads will be too 
full and it will be a mess with traffic.  He is also opposed to the comment regarding that there will 
be no improvements without this development.  
Mayor Called for rebuttal from the applicant: 
 Jay Walker: The people in Stonehaven who will be directly effected by this project are in 
favor of it. Addressing the 55 and over they’d be able to be in the designated C-1 area in the 
proposal. Concerning Carlene’s comment regarding the commercial being less traffic due to 
light commercial having limited hours but he doesn’t believe that is always the case. This project 
is projected to relax the traffic not increase it as stated by those in opposition. These plans 
would provide a buffer between the highway and business/residential. 
 Paul Watson: He is the owner of the property. He has been listening to the concerns 
regarding traffic for ten years. The concerns of the patrons are the same: heavy traffic, not too 
much commercial and unsafe for pedestrians.  He also lives here and has experienced the 
traffic issues. He feels the product being offered would best serve the communities needs.  The 
market controls what can be put in the area and the market isn’t looking for a large area of C-1. 
This planned development was planned to attract commercial and get things done in a timely 
manner. He encourages the council to proceed with the project.  
Mayor Called for questions: 
 President Kiser: Questioned the comments regarding it won’t get done in timely manner 
if this project isn’t approved and the comment regarding more traffic with commercial.  He also 
pointed out that the property in 2012 was zoned residential and changed at the request of the 
property owner to C-1 and a development agreement was signed.  If it was purchased by the 
current owner after that date they purchased it with it being zoned as C-1.  
Answer from the applicant: 
 If we don’t proceed with the product by a known good developer there could be a delay 
in the project. 
 Council Member Garner: When would this project start? 
Answer from the applicant: As soon as possible. The plat would be submitted to the city for 
approval and then would proceed as quick as reasonably possible. The developer is very 
motivated to get this project going. 
 Mayor: Would you begin with the townhouses or commercial? 
Answer from the applicant: We don’t know it depends upon the market. 
 
Motion: Motion by Council President Kiser close public comment at 7:00 p.m.   
Motion seconded by Council Member Garner and approved unanimously. 
COUNCIL DISCUSSION:  
 President Kiser: In his opinion townhouses are not the best for the proposed area.  
Twelve acres of commercial would be difficult but he would still like to see commercial on that 
piece. In his opinion he doesn’t feel the project is a good fit to align with the comprehensive 
plan. 
 Council Member Garner: Commenting on the developers plan to start as soon as 
possible—he feels that the intersection needs to be done before the development. 84 units is 
too many for that small area.  Effects all people in town not just those in Stonehaven. 



      

 

Middleton City Council Meeting June 16, 2021 Page 4 
 

MAYOR/COUNCIL DISCUSSION CONT.:  
 Mayor: City Staff Please address the Hartley/Highway 44 and Willis/Hartley 
intersections. 
 

Becky Crofts, City Administrator: The city has an anticipated $800,000 towards the $1.1 
million project. It is anticipated to be completed before school next year—the sewer line needs 
to be completed prior to the completion of the intersection. With regard to the Willis/Hartley 
intersection—the city is working with Toll Bros to put a roundabout there. This is not finalized it 
is just being discussed. 
 Council Member Huggins: When I look at the minutes from P & Z I feel the intersections 
are going to happen. She feels there is a need for townhomes in Middleton but doesn’t feel that 
is the best location. She thinks that the proposed number of townhomes is too many for that 
area.  Commercial is a high priority for Middleton. 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 7:13 P.M. 
 
Motion: Motion by Council President Kiser to deny the application from Falkirk Holdings LLC & 
Todd Campbell for Rezone and Development Agreement with respect to the Stonehaven project 
planned for an 11.18-acre parcel located at 0 Hartley Lane (Tax Parcel #34443013). Applicant is 
seeking a rezone of a portion of the parcel from C-1 to M-F to permit the future development of 
a maximum of 84 townhome lots. Motion seconded by Council Member Huggins and approved 
unanimously by a roll call vote of all present council members. 

4. Consider approving a Special Events Permit to Middleton Fireworks Fund 
for 4th of July Fireworks at Foote Park July 4, 2021. – Becky Crofts 

 
Mayor Rule called item and City Administrator Becky Crofts presented the application. It 

has been reviewed by the Middleton Rural Fire District and Deputy Chief Islas submitted his 
comments and approval.  

 
Motion: Motion by Council President Kiser to approve a Special Events Permit to Middleton 
Fireworks fund for 4th of July Fireworks at Foote Park July 4, 2021 and waive fees. Motion 
seconded by Council Member Garner and approved unanimously. 

 

5. Consider approving 2021 Special Events Permit to GMPRD for community 
events located in Foote Park and Hawthorne Park. – Becky Crofts 

• Art in the Park at Foote Park June 18-19, 2021. Beer & Wine Catering 
permit required. 

• Baseball Concessions @Hawthorne Park - Monday thru Thursday 
evenings - ran by GMPRD employees for about 2.5 hours each time. 
Currently doing this through the end of June. 

• Baseball Tournament - Middleton Baseball Association is hosting 
this on June 17th - June 19th at Hawthorne Park. 

• Movies in the Park @ Foote Park.  Dates: (6/11, 6/18, 7/16, 8/20, 9/10, 
9/24) 

• July 4th Fireworks in Foote Park (7/4) 

• Water Wars at Foote Park (7/21, 8/10)  

• Back to School – Obstacle Course at Foote Park (8/12) 

• Harvest Festival - 1st Saturday in October (10/2) 

• Pedersen's Lemonade at Foote Park concessions on Saturdays to 
sell to soccer players.  (Now through the end of soccer season) 



      

 

Middleton City Council Meeting June 16, 2021 Page 5 
 

Vendor/Solicitor permit required. 

• Saturday Soccer at Middleton Place Park  

• Sportsman's Outdoor Event at Foote Park (8/27 & 8/28) 
  

Mayor Rule called the item and Becky Crofts presented a summary and referred to city 

code.  

Motion: Motion by Council President Kiser to approve Special Events Permits for GMPRD 
for the events presented at Foote Park and Hawthorne Park.  Motion seconded by Council 
Member Huggins and approved unanimously. 
 

6. Consider approving a proposal from the Stack Rock Group for design of 
River Park Commercial/Residential areas and walking paths. – Becky Crofts 

  
Mayor Rule called the item and City Administrator Becky Crofts presented the proposed design 
sample. This would be a city project to increase park areas and connect recreational areas with 
proposed commercial areas. The design from Stack Rock Group would provide the “vision” for 
the city to develop from.  
Mayor/Council questions and comments: 

Mayor: Urban Renewal could help with this project similar to what Caldwell has done with 
their Indian Creek renovations.  
Council President Kiser: Would the $24,000 be the out the door cost? Yes, it is not to 
exceed $24,000.  He also commented that he would like to see a venue in Middleton so that 
people stay here instead of recreating and using retail in other communities.  
Huggins: She feels that anything we can do to give residents in Middleton activities in 
Middleton is good for our community. 

 
Motion: Motion by Council President Kiser proposal from Stack Rock Group for design for River 
Park Commercial/Residential areas and walking paths. Motion seconded by Council Member 
Garner and approved unanimously by Roll Call Vote. 

 
 

 
Budget Workshop: FY 2022—Wendy Miles, City Treasurer 

 

Public Comment:  

None.  

Mayor Comments, Council Comments:  

Council President Kiser:  

Mayor Rule:  

Council Member Huggins:  

Council Member Garner: 

Council Member O’Meara: 



      

 

Middleton City Council Meeting June 16, 2021 Page 6 
 

Adjourn: Mayor Rule adjourned the city council meeting at 8:34 P.M. 

 

 

 

             
ATTEST:      Steven J. Rule, Mayor  
 
      
Rhonda Carpenter, Deputy Clerk 
Minutes Approved: July 7, 2021 
 
 









































































 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   1b 



      

 

Middleton City Council Meeting June 16, 2021 Page 1 
 

MIDDLETON CITY COUNCIL 
JUNE 22, 2021 

 
The Middleton City Special Council meeting on June 22, 2021 was called-to-order at 1:09 p.m. 
by Council President Kiser.  
 
Roll Call: Council President Kiser was present, Mayor Rule, Council Members Huggins, Garner 
and were all present via telephone. Council member O’Meara was absent 
 
Pledge of Allegiance, Invocation: None 
 
Action Items 

1. Consider approving the appointment of Bruce Bayne to the City of Middleton 

Impact Fee Advisory Committee per City Code: 1-16-10-A.—Mayor Rule 

Mayor Rule: the city needs to have staff representation on the committee.  He 

recommends the appointment of Bruce Bayne, Public Works Director. 

Motion: Motion by Council President Kiser appoint Bruce Bayne to the City of Middleton 
Impact Fee Advisory Committee per City Code: 1-16-10-A. Motion seconded by Council 
Member Garner and approved unanimously. 

 

2. Consider approving bid from Core & Main for the Hartley Sewer Pipe Procurement 

in an amount not to exceed $504,260.40 – Bruce Bayne  

Bruce Bayne presented the procurement sheets for the Hartley Sewer Pipe project.  He 

remarked that Ferguson was the lowest bid but they didn’t include a company invoice—

which was a required document—therefore their low bid was invalid. The next lowest bid 

was received from Core & Main in an amount not to exceed $491,666.00 (incorrect 

amount was listed on agenda). This project has a window of allowed construction during 

the winter months.  There will be a separate contractor to complete the installation of the 

pipe.  

Comments/Questions: 

President Kiser: Why was there a need for a special meeting for this bid? Answer: two 

reasons: 1. to ensure that the materials are available when needed 2. prices are 

increasing weekly, and bids are only good for a limited time. Kiser asked if the product 

would be locked up until the time of construction. Bruce indicated that the pipe will be 

stored behind the fence at the city shop. 

Council Member Garner: Comment: he confirmed that there is a shortage of plastic in 

the industry he works in so he felt it was good to purchase while the product is available. 

Council Member Huggins: Indicated that the city needs to make decisions on the 

information they currently have.  She expects that we will see more of these special 

meetings in order to acquire the materials needed while they are available. 

Mayor Rule: Acknowledged the comments and stated that crunch time for this project 

this fall during the allowed construction window may be difficult to meet if the city doesn’t 

already have the materials needed. 



      

 

Middleton City Council Meeting June 16, 2021 Page 2 
 

Motion: Motion by Council President Kiser approve the bid from Core & Main for the 

Hartley Sewer Pipe Procurement in an amount not to exceed $491,666.00 and to 

authorize Bruce Bayne to sign any documents related to this pipe procurement. Motion 

seconded by Council Member Huggins and approved unanimously 

Public Comment:  

None.  

Mayor Comments, Council Comments:  

Council President Kiser:  

Mayor Rule:  

Council Member Huggins:  

Council Member Garner: 

Council Member O’Meara: 

Adjourn: Council President Kiser adjourned the special city council meeting at 1:21 p.m. 

 

 

 

             
ATTEST:      Steven J. Rule, Mayor  
 
      
Rhonda Carpenter, Deputy Clerk 
Minutes Approved: July 7, 2021 
 
 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

1e 



 
 

1 
 

 

Middleton City Council 
Findings of Facts, Conclusions of Law, and Decision & Order 
 
 

 

 

 
 

In the Matter of the Request of Todd Campbell and Jaylen Walker (the “Applicant’) for 
Rezone and Development Agreement Modification of the 11.18 acre Stonehaven Commercial 
project located at the intersection of Willis Road and Hartley Lane (Tax Parcel No. 34443013) 
(the “Property”): 
 
A. Findings of Fact: The Middleton City Council accepts the facts as outlined in the staff 

report (incorporated herein by this reference and made a part hereof as if set forth in 
full, a copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit A), public testimony, and applicant 
submittals, as set out below. Additionally, all city ordinances, standards and codes were 
used in evaluating the application. 

 
1. Hearing Facts:  

 
i. The Development Agreement and C-1 Zoning have been in place on the property since 

2012. The property Owner was the person who requested and applied for the 2012 
Development Agreement. 

 
ii. The Property is approximately surrounded by R-3 single family homes and would require 

use of already overly burdened City services and roads, including Hartley Lane and 
Middleton Road. 

 
iii. Additionally, see the facts outlined in the Staff Report for the hearing date of June 16, 

2021, which Report is attached hereto as Exhibit “A’ and incorporated herein by this 
reference. 

 
2. Procedural Status and Planning and Zoning Commission Recommendation: See the facts 

outlined in the Staff Report for the hearing date of June 16, 2021, which Report is attached 
hereto as Exhibit “A’ and incorporated herein by this reference. 

 
3. Application and Property Facts: See the facts outlined in the Staff Report for the hearing 

date of June 16, 2021, which Report is attached hereto as Exhibit “A’ and incorporated 
herein by this reference. 

 
B. Conclusions of Law: The Middleton City Council has the authority to hear this case and 

order that it be approved or denied. The public notice requirements were met, the 
hearing was legally noticed and posted, and the hearing was held and conducted under 
the requirement of Idaho Code and City ordinances. Specifically, based upon the findings 
of fact, the Middleton City Council finds the following: 

 
1. That the City of Middleton has the authority to exercise the powers conferred upon it by 

the “Local Land Use Planning Act of 1975,” codified at Chapter 65, Title 67, Idaho Code 



             
        

2 
 

(I.C. §67-6503). 
 

2. That the City of Middleton properly exercised said authority. 
 

3. That due consideration has been given to the comment(s) received from the governmental 
subdivisions providing services in the City of Middleton planning jurisdiction and 
comment(s) received in written form and through public testimony. 
 

4. That notice of the application and public hearing were given according to law.   
 

5. That Planning and Zoning Commission’s and City Council’s public hearings were 
conducted according to law, and the City has kept a record of the application and related 
documents.  
 

6. That codes and standards applicable to the applications are the Idaho Standards for Public 
Works Construction, the Middleton Supplement to the Idaho Standards for Public Works 
Construction, and Middleton City Code 1-14, 1-16, 5-1, 5-2, 5-3, and 5-4. 
 

7. That the Development Agreement applicable to the property and the property’s  C-1 Zoning 
have been in place on the property since 2012.  
 

8. That Townhomes are inappropriate for the specific area because they are surrounded by R-
3 single family homes and because, at that specific location, townhomes create a density 
that may overly burden City services and roads, including Hartley Lane and Middleton 
Road. 
 

9. That Townhomes are in conflict with Goals 4, 7, and 8 of the 2019 Middleton 
Comprehensive Plan because they detract from the City’s goals to promote commercial 
development, a diverse economy, and employment opportunities for residents, and that 
creating commercial development is more important at this location than creating diverse 
housing opportunities. 
 

10. That, given the foregoing, the application is in conflict with the Middleton Comprehensive 
Plan. 

 
C. Order of Decision: 
 

Pursuant to the City Council’s authority as provided in Middleton City Code 1-5-2, and 
based upon the Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law, the Mayor and City Council hereby 
order that the request for Rezone and Development Agreement Modification of the 11.18 acre 
Stonehaven Commercial project located at the intersection of Willis Road and Hartley Lane (Tax 
Parcel No. 34443013) is hereby denied. 
 
D. Modifications Presently Necessary to Gain Approval 
 
Applicants may be able to gain approval of the applications if they were to keep some C-1 



             
        

3 
 

Commercial property and provide R-3 housing instead of townhomes. Alternatively, the 
Applicants may be able to gain approval of the application if the Applicants increased the area 
dedicated to Commercial uses, decreasing the number of townhome lots. 

 
E. Right to Request Regulatory Taking Analysis 
 
The Applicants are hereby notified of their right to request a regulatory taking analysis pursuant 
to section 67-8003, Idaho Code. 
 
WRITTEN ORDER AND DECISION APPROVED ON: July _____, 2021. 
 
 
 
            
      Steven J. Rule, Mayor 
      Middleton City Council 
 
Attest: 
 
      
Roberta Stewart 
Planning and Zoning Department 

 
 
 



 

1 
 

             STAFF REVIEW AND REPORT 
Middleton City Council 

 
 

 

 

Stonehaven – 11+ acre Commercial Parcel  
Rezone & Development Agreement Modification 

 

                                  
 

A. City Council Hearing Date: June 16, 2021 

 
B. Application Request and Project Description:    Request for Rezone and 

Development Agreement Modification of 11+ acre parcel adjacent to the Stonehaven 
Subdivision (Tax Parcel No. 34443013 – 0 Hartley Lane.)  Applicant is requesting 
rezone from C-1 Neighborhood Commercial to M-F Multi-Family for 7.3 acres of the 11 
acres.  The remaining 3.7 acres are to remain C-1 along the frontage of Willis Road. 
 
Applicant is also requesting a modification to the current Development Agreement to 
allow future preliminary plat and development of up to 84 townhomes in the M-F zone. 
Applicant has submitted a concept plan showing the potential future development of 
townhomes & commercial lots.  

            



             
        

2 
 

 
C. History and Current Zoning:  In 2012, the current owner of the property had 

requested a rezone from R-3 to the current zoning of C-1.  C-1 zoning is 
“Neighborhood Commercial”, and it is a less intensive commercial use that services 
local neighborhoods.  This would include dental offices, light retail, and service 
businesses such as a fitness gym.  Since the time of the 2012 rezone to C-1, the 
property has remained vacant land with no commercial development.  
 
As to zoning, the parcel is surrounded on the north, east, and south sides by R-3 
zoning and single-family homes. To the west is a large church parcel.  
 

                        
 

D. City Services:  City water and sewer are already located down the center of the 
parcel. Additionally, services are located immediately to the south of the parcel in the 
Stonehaven Subdivision.   

 

                                  
 
 
E. Traffic, Access & Streets:  Access to the subdivision is via Willis Road and also 

through the Stonehaven Subdivision to the south. The street improvements are 
already completed on the interior portions of the 11 acre parcel, but the frontage 
improvements to Willis Road are unfinished. 

R-3 

R-3 

R-3 

R-3 

C-1 



             
        

3 
 

 
F. Development Agreement:  A 2012 Development Agreement already exists with 

respect to this property.  Applicant is requesting a modification to add the following 
provisions and delete existing provisions in conflict with these seven provisions:  
 

a. 7.3 acres of the total 11 acres to be rezoned M-F Multi-Family. The remaining 
3.7 acres to remain C-1 zoning. 

b. Developer to improve the parcel as generally shown in the Concept Plan to be 
attached to the modified DA. 

c. In the M-F zoned portion of the parcel, Developer may develop up to a 
maximum of 84 townhome lots, which are defined in the Middleton City Code as 
“Single Family Attached”, and development must occur in compliance with all 
dimensional standards and other provisions of the Middleton City Code at the 
time of building permit issuance. 

d. Any future preliminary plat application must include a special use permit 
application for townhomes in compliance with MCC 5-4-1 Table 1. 

e. Developer will be required to submit a Traffic Study at the time development 
improvements begin.  The Traffic study will include the intersections of Willis & 
Hartley and Hartley & Hwy 44, and any other intersections the City Engineer 
deems necessary. 

f. Upon development, the Developer will improve all street frontages and dedicate 
improved right of way to the City. 

g. Upon development, the Developer will pay all proportionate share traffic fees as 
determined by the Traffic Study and City Engineer. 
 

 
G. Findings Required to Approve or Deny the Applications:  Per Middleton City Code 

1-14-2, the City Council must make a reasoned statement explaining the basis for their 
decision. If the City Council chooses to deny the applications, City Council must 
identify what Applicant can do to gain approval.  

 
In making this reasoned statement with respect to the Rezone/Modified DA 
applications, Council must specifically consider the following: 
 

1. Does the rezone/DA Mod have a demonstrably adverse effect on the 
delivery of City services (sewer & water)?   
 

2. Is the Rezone/DA Modification “in harmony” with the Comprehensive Plan or 
“in conflict” with the Comprehensive Plan?  If it is in harmony, then the 
applications should be approved. If it is in conflict, then the applications 
should be denied. 

 
Because City services are already on site, the City Council is left with considering only 
whether the rezone is in harmony with the Comp Plan or in conflict with the 
Comprehensive Plan.  To decide this, Council should look to the Goals and Strategies 
outlined in the 2019 Comprehensive Plan.  Planning Staff finds that the Rezone/DA 



             
        

4 
 

Modification is both “in harmony” and “in conflict” with the Comprehensive Plan.  The 
decision of the Council may come down to how much weight and consideration the 
Council gives to the “contending” Goals. 
 
For instance, the Comprehensive Plan has Goals to promote commercial 
development, a diverse economy, and employment opportunities for residents. (Goals 
7 and 8 in the 2019 Comprehensive Plan).  Additionally, City Council may find that 
keeping the parcel at C-1 instead of M-F will manage the intensity of development and 
stabilize property values and tax rates. (Goal 4.) Adding C-1 neighborhood commercial 
also promotes a “small town feel.” (Goal 4). In light of these goals, the rezone/DA Mod 
may be in “conflict” with the Comprehensive Plan because it is substituting townhomes 
for commercial uses. 
 
However, the Comprehensive Plan also calls for (1) a variety of housing types and lot 
sizes, (2) multifamily and higher density housing near schools, transit stations and 
commercial areas, and (3) buffers between commercial and residential uses. (Goals 4 
and 11 of the 2019 Comprehensive Plan).  In this instance, the Rezone/DA 
Modification would appear to be “in harmony” with the Comprehensive Plan. 
 
Again, the decision may come down to how much weight Council gives to one “Goal” 
over another “Goal.” 
 

H. Planning & Zoning Findings: At the May 10, 2021 Planning & Zoning Commission, 
the Commission denied the applications for rezone and development agreement 
modification. Minutes from the Meeting are attached to this Staff Report. 

 
I. Comments Received from Surrounding Landowners:  None.  The Neighborhood 

Meeting sign in sheet noted simply that one nearby landowner was concerned about 
the lowering of home values and detriment caused by a gas station and/or liquor store.  
See sign in sheet attached to this Staff Report.  
 

J. Comments from Agencies: A May 7, 2021 analysis from COMPASS found that the 
mix of residential and commercial uses can mitigate the impact of increased traffic.   
 
A July 8, 2021 email from Black Canyon Irrigation stated that the District requires an 
easement for their ditches, and proper irrigation and drainage must be provided. 
 
A June 6, 2021 analysis from ITD found that the proposed subdivision of 82 
townhomes will impact the intersection of Hartley Road and Highway 44, which is 
already deemed a “failing” intersection and in need of a signal control.  ITD estimates 
the cost of the signalized intersection of Highway 44 and Hartley Lane is $1,181,233. 
 

K. Applicant Information:  Application was received and accepted on April 5, 2021. The 
Applicants are Todd Campbell & Jay Walker P.O. Box 140298, Boise ID 83714.  
 
 



             
        

5 
 

L. Notices & Neighborhood Meeting:    Dates: 
      

Newspaper Notification     05/30/2021 
 

 Radius notification mailed to 
 Adjacent landowners within 300’    05/28/2021  

 
 Circulation to Agencies     05/28/2021  
 
 Sign Posting property     05/28/2021 

 
Neighborhood Meeting     03/16/2021 
 

M. Applicable Codes and Standards: 
  
Idaho State Statue Title 67, Chapter 65 
Middleton City Code 1-14, 1-15, 5-1, 5-2, and 5-4. 
 

N. Conclusions and Recommended Conditions of Approval: 
 
The City Council is tasked with issuing a reasoned statement for its approval or denial 
of Applicant’s Rezone & DA Modification applications. Specifically, City Council must 
determine whether the application requests are “in harmony” or “in conflict” with the 
Middleton Comprehensive Plan.   
 
If the Council decides to deny the applications, State law requires the Council to 
identify what measures, if any, Applicant can take to gain approval. 
 
If Council is inclined to approve the applications, Planning Staff does not recommend 
any conditions of approval because any provisions that are necessary for future 
development are contained in the DA and/or handled by City Codes and Standards. 

 
 
 
 
 

Prepared by Middleton City Planner, Robert Stewart    Dated: 6/14/2021 



APPENDIX 



















































































 

Middleton Planning & Zoning Commission, May 10, 2021  Page 1 of 3
  
 

MIDDLETON CITY PLANNING AND ZONING 
COMMISSION MINUTES 

MAY 10, 2021 
 
The May 10, 2021 Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting was called to order by Chairman 
Ray Waltemate at 5:33 p.m.  
 
Call to Order - Pledge of Allegiance 

Roll Call: Chairman Ray Waltemate, and Commissioners Jackie Hutchison, Janet Gregory, 
Kip Crofts and Whitney Springston were present.  
 
Information Items:  
  

Action Items 
1. Consent Agenda 

a. Consider approving April 12, 2021 regular meeting minutes. 
 
Chairman Waltemate called the consent agenda items and asked for any questions or 
changes to the minutes.  
 
Motion: Motion by Commissioner Springston to consent agenda items A-D. Motion 
seconded by Commissioner Gregory and approved unanimously. 
 

 
  

2. Public Hearing: Applications from Falkirk Holdings LLC & Todd Campbell for 
Rezone and Development Agreement with respect to the Stonehaven project planned 
for an 11.18 acre parcel located at 0 Hartley Lane (Tax Parcel #34443013). Applicant is 
seeking a rezone of a portion of the parcel from C-1 to M-F to permit the future 
development of a maximum of 84 townhome lots 
 
Chairman Waltemate opened the Public Hearing at 5:45 p.m. 
 
City Planner, Roberta Stewart presented the Staff Report (See Exhibit 1) 
 
Chairman Waltemate called for the applicant presentation at 6:02 p.m. 

• Jay Walker—Representative for Falkirk Holdings, LLC & Todd Campbell: Mr. Walker 
gave  a presentation on the proposed Rezone & Development Agreement (See 
Exhibit 2) 

• Todd Campbell—took questions on the project from the commission and answered 
questions regarding the properties.  The cost would be $300,000-400,000 per unit 
with the final product being in the mid-$400,000 range. The unit size would range 
from 1500-2400 sq ft.  The yard size would comply with Middleton City Code.  The 
yards would be private fenced yards for each unit. 

Questions from Commission: 
• Springston—Timeline? Answer: applicant is prepared for immediate turnaround with the 

preliminary plat and design. The goal is to provide homes for smaller families and the 
elderly to fill a demand. 

• Gregory— 
o Setbacks—how will the requirement of 10 feet be met? Answer: there is a 



 

Middleton Planning & Zoning Commission, May 10, 2021  Page 2 of 3
  
 

proposed 12 foot setback which will be a total of 24 feet between buildings.  
o Traffic Studies for Hartley? Answer: traffic is projected to decrease with the move 

from commercial to residential. 
• Waltemate—Is the road is going to remain a commercial collector? Answer: there is no 

proposed changes to the road with this proposal. 
 
Chairman Waltemate opened the public comments at 6:29 p.m. 
 

• Shawn Maybon of 1382 La Reata Way—lives near Willis and Hartley. Mr. Maybon 
spoke in opposition to the proposal.  He stated the high density zoning would have a 
negative impact on traffic, sewer, water and water pressure.  The buffer of an 8 foot 
berm already exists.   He doesn’t believe this proposal is consistent with the 
comprehensive plan of the city. 

• Mike Graefe of 1889 Ridge Way in West Highlands.  Mr. Graefe spoke in opposition 
of the proposal and mirrored the concerns brought forth by Mr. Maybon. He indicated 
that he is not a fan of townhouses. Two plus vehicles per home would have a 
tremendous impact on the traffic in the area.  He can’t see the vision of how a 
roundabout would work in that area.  He also feels that the right of way on both sides 
of a street should be equal. 

• Sandy Sinclair of 1871 Ridge Way in West Highlands.  Ms. Sinclair spoke in 
opposition of the proposal.  She agreed with all that Mr. Maybon and Mr. Graefe 
stated.  She is totally against high-density housing in that area. 

• Peggy Souza of 12576 Cowboy Lane (outside city limits). Ms. Souza spoke in 
opposition.  She stated that traffic is already a problem in the area from the school 
and homes.  Crowding people into little spaces is going to be a big problem.  
Crowding roads and areas that are already crowded. 

 
      Chairman Waltemate closed the public comment at 6:45 p.m. 
 
 Discussion: 

• City Planner, Roberta Stewart went on record stating that the city has not approved or 
disapproved of this proposal. 
 

Motion: Motion by Commissioner Gregory to deny application from Falkirk Holdings LLC & 
Todd Campbell for Rezone and Development Agreement with respect to the Stonehaven 
project planned for an 11.18-acre parcel located at 0 Hartley Lane (Tax Parcel #34443013). 
Applicant is seeking a rezone of a portion of the parcel from C-1 to M-F to permit the future 
development of a maximum of 84 townhome lots. Motion seconded by Commissioner 
Hutchinson and approved unanimously. 

Chairman Waltemate closed the public hearing at 7:15 p.m 
 
It was moved by Chairman Waltemate to close the meeting at 7:17 p.m. Motion was 
seconded by Commissioner Springston and unanimously approved. 

 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Middleton Planning & Zoning Commission, May 10, 2021  Page 3 of 3
  
 

 
 
 
             
 
ATTEST:       Ray Waltemate, Chairman  
 
      
Rhonda Case, Deputy Clerk 
Approved: June 7, 2021 



Communities in Motion 2040 2.0 Development Review 
 

The Community Planning Association of Southwest Idaho (COMPASS) is the metropolitan planning organization 
(MPO) for Ada and Canyon Counties. COMPASS has developed this review as a tool for local governments to 
evaluate whether land developments are consistent with the goals of Communities in Motion 2040 2.0 (CIM 2040), 
the regional long-range transportation plan for Ada and Canyon Counties. This checklist is not intended to be 
prescriptive, but rather a guidance document based on CIM 2040 2.0 goals. 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 

 

 
 

Recommendations 

The proposal provides a mix of residential and commercial which can mitigate the impact of increased traffic. There 
are no plans for public transportation to this location.  
 
 

 
 

 

 

More information about COMPASS and Communities in Motion 2040 2.0: 
Web: www.compassidaho.org 
Email info@compassidaho.org 
More information about the development review process:  
http://www.compassidaho.org/dashboard/devreview.htm 

Development Name: Campbell      Agency: Middleton 

CIM Vision Category: Existing Neighborhoods 
 
New households: 82   New jobs: ±50   Exceeds CIM forecast: 

 
 

Farmland contributes to the local economy, creates 
additional jobs, and provides food security to the region. 
Development in farm areas decreases the productivity 
and sustainability of farmland.  
 

Farmland consumed: Yes 
Farmland within 1 mile: 920 acres 
 

Housing within 1 mile: 930 
Jobs within 1 mile: 210 
Jobs/Housing Ratio: 0.2 
 

Nearest bus stop: >4 miles 
Nearest public school: 0.1 miles 
Nearest public park: 1.5 miles 
Nearest grocery store: >4 miles 
 
 

CIM Corridor: N/A 
Pedestrian level of stress: None 
Bicycle level of stress: None 
 

A good jobs/housing balance – a ratio between 1 and 
1.5 – reduces traffic congestion. Higher numbers 
indicate the need for more housing and lower numbers 
indicate an employment need. 

Residents who live or work less than ½ mile from 
critical services have more transportation choices. 
Walking and biking reduces congestion by taking cars off 
the road, while supporting a healthy and active lifestyle.   
 

Level of Stress considers facility type, number of vehicle 
lanes, and speed. Roads with G or PG ratings better 
support bicyclists and pedestrians of all ages and comfort 
levels.  
 

Nearest police station: 1.4 miles 
Nearest fire station: 2.4 miles 
 

Developments within 1.5 miles of police and fire 
stations ensure that emergency services are more 
efficient and reduce the cost of these important public 
services.   

http://www.compassidaho.org/
mailto:info@compassidaho.org
http://www.compassidaho.org/dashboard/devreview.htm


From: Carl Hayes
To: Jennica Reynolds; "Canyon County Paramedics"; "Carl Miller"; "Idaho Power - Mike Ybarguen"; "ITD -

Development"; "ITD - Sarah"; "Julie Collette"; "Middleton School District"; "zoninginfo@canyonco.org";
"permits@starfirerescue.org"

Cc: Roberta Stewart
Subject: RE: Notice of Public Hearing CC - Campbell Rezone/DA
Date: Tuesday, June 8, 2021 8:09:43 AM

Our only facility in this area is already piped, but we will require that any easements on this property
be recorded on the final plat and that irrigation be provided along with any necessary drainage.
 
Thank you,
 
 

 
 
 

From: Jennica Reynolds <jreynolds@middletoncity.com> 
Sent: Friday, May 28, 2021 11:04 AM
To: 'Canyon County Paramedics' <MStowell@ccparamedics.com>; 'Carl Miller'
<cmiller@compassidaho.org>; 'Idaho Power - Mike Ybarguen' <MYbarguen@idahopower.com>; 'ITD -
Development' <D3Development.services@ITD.idaho.gov>; 'ITD - Sarah'
<Sarah.Arjona@itd.idaho.gov>; 'Julie Collette' <gmprdjulie@gmail.com>; 'Middleton School District'
<csanderson@msd134.org>; 'zoninginfo@canyonco.org' <zoninginfo@canyonco.org>; Carl Hayes

mailto:carl@blackcanyonirrigation.com
mailto:jreynolds@middletoncity.com
mailto:MStowell@ccparamedics.com
mailto:cmiller@compassidaho.org
mailto:MYbarguen@idahopower.com
mailto:D3Development.services@ITD.idaho.gov
mailto:D3Development.services@ITD.idaho.gov
mailto:Sarah.Arjona@itd.idaho.gov
mailto:gmprdjulie@gmail.com
mailto:csanderson@msd134.org
mailto:zoninginfo@canyonco.org
mailto:permits@starfirerescue.org
mailto:rstewart@middletoncity.com


<carl@blackcanyonirrigation.com>; 'permits@starfirerescue.org' <permits@starfirerescue.org>
Cc: Roberta Stewart <rstewart@middletoncity.com>
Subject: Notice of Public Hearing CC - Campbell Rezone/DA
 
Please see the attached Public Hearing Notice for City Council.
https://middleton.id.gov/PublicHearingNotices
 

Best,
Jennica Reynolds
Administrative Deputy Clerk
City of Middleton
208-585-3133
jreynolds@middletoncity.com
 
 

https://middleton.id.gov/PublicHearingNotices
mailto:jreynolds@middletoncity.com


 

 
  

IDAHO TRANSPORTATION DEPARTMENT 
P.O. Box 8028  •  Boise, ID  83707-2028 

(208) 334-8300  •  itd.idaho.gov 

 

 
 
 
 

June 7, 2021 

 

 
Roberta Stewart 

City Planner 

1103 West Main Street 

Middleton, Idaho 83644 

 

VIA EMAIL 

 

Development 

Application REZONE AND DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT MODIFICATION 

Project Name STONEHAVEN SUBDIVISION 

Project Location Southwest corner of Hartley Lane and Willis Road, north of SH-44 milepost 2.81 

Project 

Description 

Rezone of a 11.18 acre parcel from C-1 to M-F to permit future development of 82 

townhome lots and modification of existing development agreement for Stonehaven to 

allow for rezone 

Applicant Falkirk Holdings LLC & Todd Campbell 

 

The Idaho Transportation Department (ITD) reviewed the referenced rezone and development agreement 

modification applications and has the following comments: 

 

1. This project does not abut the State Highway system.  

 

2. ITD and the City of Middleton have entered into an interagency agreement to collect proportionate 

share from new developments to mitigate traffic impacts from incoming developments. Proportionate 

share for each development is calculated based off of number of trips added to State Highway system. 

The number of trips generated can be determined using the Institute of Transportation Engineers (ITE) 

Trip Generation Manual. ITD requires trip distribution information to determine where trips generated 

by developments access the State Highway system.   

 

3. No trip distribution information was provided; without trip distribution information ITD must assume 

the worst case scenario that all trips generated will utilize the Hartley Lane/ SH-44 intersection. The 

proposed subdivision is adding 46 trips to Hartley Lane/SH-44 intersection in the PM Peak at buildout, 

and 38 trips in the AM Peak. Proportionate share is based on the average AM and PM site trips through 

the intersection of SH-44/ Hartley Lane which is approximately 2.88% percent of the traffic utilizing 

the intersection in 2021. The intersection has been documented as failing and is in need of 

signalization. ITD has already agreed with the City of Middleton that a signalized intersection is the 

preferred improvement. The construction of the cost of design and construction of a future signal at 



 

 
  

IDAHO TRANSPORTATION DEPARTMENT 
P.O. Box 8028  •  Boise, ID  83707-2028 

(208) 334-8300  •  itd.idaho.gov 

 

 
 
 
 

SH-44/Hartley Lane with northbound and southbound left turn lanes, a northbound right turn lane, and 

eastbound and westbound right turn lanes is approximately $1,181,233 (see attached). The applicant 

will only be responsible for contributing their proportionate share of $34,020 (2.88%).  

 

4. Idaho Code 40-1910 does not allow advertising within the right-of-way of any State Highway. 

 

5. The Idaho Administrative Procedure Act (IDAPA) 39.03.60 governs advertising along the State 

Highway system.  The applicant may contact Justin Pond, Right-of-Way Section Program Manager, at 

(208) 334-8832 for more information. 

 

6. ITD objects to this development. ITD will remove the objection if the governing board requires, and 

the applicant agrees to, the execution of a Development Agreement with the City of Middleton binding 

the contribution of the proportionate share amount of $34,020. 

 

If you have any questions, you may contact me at (208) 334-8338 or Erika Bowen (208) 265-4312 ext 7.   

 

Sincerely, 

 
Sarah Arjona 

Development Services Coordinator 

Sarah.Arjona@itd.idaho.gov 
 

mailto:Sarah.Arjona@itd.idaho.gov


Stonehaven 
Proportionate Share Calculation 

(Dated 6/7/2021) 

 

82 Units 
Townhomes 
ITE Code (220) Multi-Family Housing (Low-Rise) 
 
AM Trip Rate = 0.46   
PM Trip Rate = 0.56 

 

 

 



A trip distribution diagram was not provided to the department. ITD must assume a worst-case 
scenario that all 82 residential units will head south on Hartley Road to the SH-44 / Hartley 
Road intersection. This intersection is not included in the SH-44 Corridor Plan because it is 
adjacent to the proposed alternate route. The intersection has been documented as failing and 
is in need of signalization. ITD has already agreed with the city of Middleton that a signalized 
intersection is the preferred improvement. 
 
ITD staff estimates the design and construction costs for a signal at the SH-44 / Hartley Lane intersection 
along with adding northbound and southbound left turn lanes, a northbound right turn lane and 
eastbound and westbound right turn lanes is approximately $1,181,233. 
 

2021 Site Traffic 
 

AM = 82 x 0.46 = 38 trips 

PM = 82 x 0.56 = 46 trips 

 

2021 Total Traffic (Traffic Volumes Forecasted in the Idahome RV Resort TIS) 
 

       
       

                             

 

 
 

 

 

 

Staff recommends the developer pay a total proportionate share of $34,020 (2.88%) towards 
future signalization improvements at the intersection of SH-44 / Hartley Lane. Proportionate 
share needs to be provided prior to occupancy of the development.  

 

AM Site = 38 AM Total = 1,473 AM % = 2.58 

PM Site = 46 PM Total = 1,451 PM % = 3.17 

Proportionate Share for  SH-44 /Hartley 
Signalization Improvements 

Avg % = 2.88 

PM AM 



 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

3 



 
 QUOTE#

O R D E R

SHIP DATE
 Q U O T E

PAGE

SOLD SHIP
TO TO

JOB # ORD. DATE CUST.# LOC. SALESMAN SHIP VIA FRT.

QTY. UOM
ORDER ITEM NO./DESC. UNIT PRICE DISC. NET PRICE

COMMENT

TERMS

 
                                                                    559464    1
 
                                                                      A.S.A.P.
 
 
 
 
 
 
         MIDDLETON POLICE DEPARTMENT             MIDDLETON POLICE DEPARTMENT
         1103 W MAIN ST                          ATTN: NATHAN HILKEY
                                                 1103 W MAIN ST
         MIDDLETON        ID 83644               MIDDLETON        ID 83644
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
NA      06/25/21  074669   A   MIKE RUSSELL                F-2D FOB ORIGIN
 
 
 
          7   W320F9BXR3P-RXP                    689.77       EA      4,828.39
              SIG LE P320F 9MM PRO N/S 17RD                   .00
              W/ROMEO
 
          1   XFET                                  .00       EA           .00
              THIS ITEM FET OUT                               .00
 
              IMPORTANT NOTICES:
              This quotation is based on the issuance of a department
              purchase order, F.A.E.T. Exemption, payment by check
              in 30 days (unless otherwise agreed) and in stated
              quantities.  ATF or the manufacturer may require additional
              forms.  Sample forms may be found at:
              http://www.ProForceonline.com/forms.html
              purchase order and F.E.T. form to (928)445-3468.  PLEASE
              MAIL ORIGINALS to ProForce Law Enforcement, 2625 Stearman
              RD. Ste A, Prescott, AZ  86301.
 
              Standard Terms are Net 30 days.  If department policy does
              not allow for partial shipments and payments, separate
              purchase orders for each item will be necessary.
 
              Standard manufacturer's warranty applies to all department
              purchases unless otherwise specifically noted.
 
              This quote is valid for 45 days from date of issue,
              pending credit approval, and is subject to manufacturer's
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

http://www.ProForceonline.com/forms.html


 
 QUOTE#

O R D E R

SHIP DATE
 Q U O T E

PAGE

SOLD SHIP
TO TO

JOB # ORD. DATE CUST.# LOC. SALESMAN SHIP VIA FRT.

QTY. UOM
ORDER ITEM NO./DESC. UNIT PRICE DISC. NET PRICE

COMMENT

TERMS

 
                                                                    559464    2
 
                                                                      A.S.A.P.
 
 
 
 
 
 
         MIDDLETON POLICE DEPARTMENT             MIDDLETON POLICE DEPARTMENT
         1103 W MAIN ST                          ATTN: NATHAN HILKEY
                                                 1103 W MAIN ST
         MIDDLETON        ID 83644               MIDDLETON        ID 83644
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
NA      06/25/21  074669   A   MIKE RUSSELL                F-2D FOB ORIGIN
 
 
 
              availability and price change.  Please call (800) 367-5855
              if this bid is still pending on the expiration date for
              updated pricing.
 
              A 20% restocking fee will apply to all returned goods.
              Please call us for a return authorization number.
 
              This quote is valid for 45 days from the date of the quote,
              pending credit approval, and is subject to inventory,
              manufacturer's availability and price change.  Please call
              to receive price update upon expiration.
              ORDERING INSTRUCTIONS: Please reply to your sales represen-
              tative in writing to process this order or send an email to
              danny.gonzales@proforceonline.com. For orders over $5,000, a
              PO or signed quote is required to process the order.
              Returned items are subject to 20% restocking fee. All sales
              are final on non-stocked/special order items
              IMPORTANT:  To order from this quotation, please sign below.
 
 
              Printed  Name: ____________________________________________
              -
              Date: ___________________________ P.O.:___________________
              -
              Signature: _______________________________________________
 
 
 
                                                     SALES AMOUNT     4,828.39
 
            FOR: MIDDLETON PD
 
            BY: DANNY GONZALES
 
                  DUE NET 30 DAYS
 

mailto:danny.gonzales@proforceonline.com


 
 QUOTE#

O R D E R

SHIP DATE
 Q U O T E

PAGE

SOLD SHIP
TO TO

JOB # ORD. DATE CUST.# LOC. SALESMAN SHIP VIA FRT.

QTY. UOM
ORDER ITEM NO./DESC. UNIT PRICE DISC. NET PRICE

COMMENT

TERMS

 
                                                                    559467    1
 
                                                                      A.S.A.P.
 
 
 
 
 
 
         MIDDLETON POLICE DEPARTMENT             MIDDLETON POLICE DEPARTMENT
         1103 W MAIN ST                          ATTN: NATHAN HILKEY
                                                 1103 W MAIN ST
         MIDDLETON        ID 83644               MIDDLETON        ID 83644
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
NA      06/25/21  074669   A   MIKE RUSSELL                F-2D FOB ORIGIN
 
 
 
          3   W320F9BXR3P-RXP                    689.77       EA      2,069.31
              SIG LE P320F 9MM PRO N/S 17RD                   .00
              W/ROMEO
 
          3   WRM40011BPROSBR                    935.17       EA      2,805.51
              SIG LE M400 PRO 5.56 SBR 11.5"                  .00
              (WRM400-11B-PRO-SBR)
 
          1   XFET                                  .00       EA           .00
              THIS ITEM FET OUT                               .00
 
              IMPORTANT NOTICES:
              This quotation is based on the issuance of a department
              purchase order, F.A.E.T. Exemption, payment by check
              in 30 days (unless otherwise agreed) and in stated
              quantities.  ATF or the manufacturer may require additional
              forms.  Sample forms may be found at:
              http://www.ProForceonline.com/forms.html
              purchase order and F.E.T. form to (928)445-3468.  PLEASE
              MAIL ORIGINALS to ProForce Law Enforcement, 2625 Stearman
              RD. Ste A, Prescott, AZ  86301.
 
              Standard Terms are Net 30 days.  If department policy does
              not allow for partial shipments and payments, separate
              purchase orders for each item will be necessary.
 
              Standard manufacturer's warranty applies to all department
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

http://www.ProForceonline.com/forms.html


 
 QUOTE#

O R D E R

SHIP DATE
 Q U O T E

PAGE

SOLD SHIP
TO TO

JOB # ORD. DATE CUST.# LOC. SALESMAN SHIP VIA FRT.

QTY. UOM
ORDER ITEM NO./DESC. UNIT PRICE DISC. NET PRICE

COMMENT

TERMS

 
                                                                    559467    2
 
                                                                      A.S.A.P.
 
 
 
 
 
 
         MIDDLETON POLICE DEPARTMENT             MIDDLETON POLICE DEPARTMENT
         1103 W MAIN ST                          ATTN: NATHAN HILKEY
                                                 1103 W MAIN ST
         MIDDLETON        ID 83644               MIDDLETON        ID 83644
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
NA      06/25/21  074669   A   MIKE RUSSELL                F-2D FOB ORIGIN
 
 
 
              purchases unless otherwise specifically noted.
 
              This quote is valid for 45 days from date of issue,
              pending credit approval, and is subject to manufacturer's
              availability and price change.  Please call (800) 367-5855
              if this bid is still pending on the expiration date for
              updated pricing.
 
              A 20% restocking fee will apply to all returned goods.
              Please call us for a return authorization number.
 
              This quote is valid for 45 days from the date of the quote,
              pending credit approval, and is subject to inventory,
              manufacturer's availability and price change.  Please call
              to receive price update upon expiration.
              ORDERING INSTRUCTIONS: Please reply to your sales represen-
              tative in writing to process this order or send an email to
              danny.gonzales@proforceonline.com. For orders over $5,000, a
              PO or signed quote is required to process the order.
              Returned items are subject to 20% restocking fee. All sales
              are final on non-stocked/special order items
              IMPORTANT:  To order from this quotation, please sign below.
 
 
              Printed  Name: ____________________________________________
              -
              Date: ___________________________ P.O.:___________________
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

mailto:danny.gonzales@proforceonline.com


 
 QUOTE#

O R D E R

SHIP DATE
 Q U O T E

PAGE

SOLD SHIP
TO TO

JOB # ORD. DATE CUST.# LOC. SALESMAN SHIP VIA FRT.

QTY. UOM
ORDER ITEM NO./DESC. UNIT PRICE DISC. NET PRICE

COMMENT

TERMS

 
                                                                    559467    3
 
                                                                      A.S.A.P.
 
 
 
 
 
 
         MIDDLETON POLICE DEPARTMENT             MIDDLETON POLICE DEPARTMENT
         1103 W MAIN ST                          ATTN: NATHAN HILKEY
                                                 1103 W MAIN ST
         MIDDLETON        ID 83644               MIDDLETON        ID 83644
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
NA      06/25/21  074669   A   MIKE RUSSELL                F-2D FOB ORIGIN
 
 
 
              -
              Signature: _______________________________________________
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
                                                     SALES AMOUNT     4,874.82
 
            FOR: MIDDLETON PD
 
            BY: DANNY GONZALES
 
                  DUE NET 30 DAYS
 



 
 QUOTE#

O R D E R

SHIP DATE
 Q U O T E

PAGE

SOLD SHIP
TO TO

JOB # ORD. DATE CUST.# LOC. SALESMAN SHIP VIA FRT.

QTY. UOM
ORDER ITEM NO./DESC. UNIT PRICE DISC. NET PRICE

COMMENT

TERMS

 
                                                                    559471    1
 
                                                                      A.S.A.P.
 
 
 
 
 
 
         MIDDLETON POLICE DEPARTMENT             MIDDLETON POLICE DEPARTMENT
         1103 W MAIN ST                          ATTN: NATHAN HILKEY
                                                 1103 W MAIN ST
         MIDDLETON        ID 83644               MIDDLETON        ID 83644
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
NA      06/25/21  074669   A   MIKE RUSSELL                FX G-FOB ORIGIN
 
 
 
          7   WRM40011BPROSBR                    935.17       EA      6,546.19
              SIG LE M400 PRO 5.56 SBR 11.5"                  .00
              (WRM400-11B-PRO-SBR)
 
          9   TRADES                             295.00-      EA      2,655.00CR
              CREDIT FOR TRADES-IF NOT SENT                   .00
              AS SPECIFIED, MAY BE REDUCED
              TRADES DESCRIBED AS:
 
              (10) GLOCK 21 GEN4
 
 
          9   TRADES                             361.00-      EA      3,249.00CR
              CREDIT FOR TRADES-IF NOT SENT                   .00
              AS SPECIFIED, MAY BE REDUCED
              TRADES DESCRBIED AS:
 
              (10) BUSHMASTER XM15-E2S
 
              - BLACK FINISH
              - 16" BARREL
              - 3-5 YEARS OLD
              - NO AGENCY MARKINGS
              - GOOD CONDITION
              - MAGPUL STOCK AND GRIP
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 QUOTE#

O R D E R

SHIP DATE
 Q U O T E

PAGE

SOLD SHIP
TO TO

JOB # ORD. DATE CUST.# LOC. SALESMAN SHIP VIA FRT.

QTY. UOM
ORDER ITEM NO./DESC. UNIT PRICE DISC. NET PRICE

COMMENT

TERMS

 
                                                                    559471    2
 
                                                                      A.S.A.P.
 
 
 
 
 
 
         MIDDLETON POLICE DEPARTMENT             MIDDLETON POLICE DEPARTMENT
         1103 W MAIN ST                          ATTN: NATHAN HILKEY
                                                 1103 W MAIN ST
         MIDDLETON        ID 83644               MIDDLETON        ID 83644
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
NA      06/25/21  074669   A   MIKE RUSSELL                FX G-FOB ORIGIN
 
 
 
          1   XFET                                  .00       EA           .00
              THIS ITEM FET OUT                               .00
 
              IMPORTANT NOTICES:
              This quotation is based on the issuance of a department
              purchase order, F.A.E.T. Exemption, payment by check
              in 30 days (unless otherwise agreed) and in stated
              quantities.  ATF or the manufacturer may require additional
              forms.  Sample forms may be found at:
              http://www.ProForceonline.com/forms.html
              purchase order and F.E.T. form to (928)445-3468.  PLEASE
              MAIL ORIGINALS to ProForce Law Enforcement, 2625 Stearman
              RD. Ste A, Prescott, AZ  86301.
 
              Standard Terms are Net 30 days.  If department policy does
              not allow for partial shipments and payments, separate
              purchase orders for each item will be necessary.
 
              Standard manufacturer's warranty applies to all department
              purchases unless otherwise specifically noted.
 
              This quote is valid for 45 days from date of issue,
              pending credit approval, and is subject to manufacturer's
              availability and price change.  Please call (800) 367-5855
              if this bid is still pending on the expiration date for
              updated pricing.
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

http://www.ProForceonline.com/forms.html


 
 QUOTE#

O R D E R

SHIP DATE
 Q U O T E

PAGE

SOLD SHIP
TO TO

JOB # ORD. DATE CUST.# LOC. SALESMAN SHIP VIA FRT.

QTY. UOM
ORDER ITEM NO./DESC. UNIT PRICE DISC. NET PRICE

COMMENT

TERMS

 
                                                                    559471    3
 
                                                                      A.S.A.P.
 
 
 
 
 
 
         MIDDLETON POLICE DEPARTMENT             MIDDLETON POLICE DEPARTMENT
         1103 W MAIN ST                          ATTN: NATHAN HILKEY
                                                 1103 W MAIN ST
         MIDDLETON        ID 83644               MIDDLETON        ID 83644
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
NA      06/25/21  074669   A   MIKE RUSSELL                FX G-FOB ORIGIN
 
 
 
              A 20% restocking fee will apply to all returned goods.
              Please call us for a return authorization number.
 
              This quote is valid for 45 days from the date of the quote,
              pending credit approval, and is subject to inventory,
              manufacturer's availability and price change.  Please call
              to receive price update upon expiration.
              ORDERING INSTRUCTIONS: Please reply to your sales represen-
              tative in writing to process this order or send an email to
              danny.gonzales@proforceonline.com. For orders over $5,000, a
              PO or signed quote is required to process the order.
              Returned items are subject to 20% restocking fee. All sales
              are final on non-stocked/special order items
              IMPORTANT:  To order from this quotation, please sign below.
 
 
              Printed  Name: ____________________________________________
              -
              Date: ___________________________ P.O.:___________________
              -
              Signature: _______________________________________________
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
                                                     SALES AMOUNT       642.19
 
            FOR: MIDDLETON PD
 
            BY: DANNY GONZALES
 
                  DUE NET 30 DAYS
 

mailto:danny.gonzales@proforceonline.com


 
 QUOTE#

O R D E R

SHIP DATE
 Q U O T E

PAGE

SOLD SHIP
TO TO

JOB # ORD. DATE CUST.# LOC. SALESMAN SHIP VIA FRT.

QTY. UOM
ORDER ITEM NO./DESC. UNIT PRICE DISC. NET PRICE

COMMENT

TERMS

 
                                                                    559481    1
 
                                                                      A.S.A.P.
 
 
 
 
 
 
         MIDDLETON POLICE DEPARTMENT             MIDDLETON POLICE DEPARTMENT
         1103 W MAIN ST                          ATTN: NATHAN HILKEY
                                                 1103 W MAIN ST
         MIDDLETON        ID 83644               MIDDLETON        ID 83644
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
NA      06/25/21  074669   A   MIKE RUSSELL                FX G-FOB ORIGIN
 
 
 
         10   NON-STOCK                          123.44       EA      1,234.40
              SFL#7360RDS-4502-481 SIG P320                   .00
              TLR-1HL SFSEV BLK BSK RH
 
          2   NON-STOCK                          123.44       EA        246.88
              SFL#7360RDS-4502-482 SIG P320                   .00
              TLR-1HL SFSEV BLK BSK LH
 
              This quote is valid for 45 days from the date of the quote,
              pending credit approval, and is subject to inventory,
              manufacturer's availability and price change.  Please call
              to receive price update upon expiration.
              ORDERING INSTRUCTIONS: Please reply to your sales represen-
              tative in writing to process this order or send an email to
              danny.gonzales@proforceonline.com. For orders over $5,000, a
              PO or signed quote is required to process the order.
              Returned items are subject to 20% restocking fee. All sales
              are final on non-stocked/special order items
              IMPORTANT:  To order from this quotation, please sign below.
 
 
              Printed  Name: ____________________________________________
              -
              Date: ___________________________ P.O.:___________________
              -
              Signature: _______________________________________________
 
 
                                                     SALES AMOUNT     1,481.28
 
            FOR: NATHAN HILKEY
 
            BY: DANNY GONZALES
 
                  DUE NET 30 DAYS
 

mailto:danny.gonzales@proforceonline.com


Invoice
Date

12/22/2020

Invoice #

6809

Bill To

MIDDLETON POLICE DEPARTMENT
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE
P.O. BOX 487
MIDDLETON, ID 83644

Ship To

CITY OF MIDDLETON
1103 W. MAIN STREET
MIDDLETON, ID 83644

P.O. Number

Greg Langley email

Terms

Net 30

Rep

DLC

Ship

12/22/2020

Via

REDDAWAY

F.O.B.

SLWS

Total

Salt Lake Wholesale Sports
3331 South 300 West
Salt Lake City, UT 84115
(801) 485-4867

Please contact us accounting@saltlakewholesalesports.com for questions or concerns.
Any descrepancies including incorrect or missing items must be reported wihtin 48 hours.

If paying by EFT or ACH please notify us by email.

Sales@saltlakewholesports.com

Item # Description Qty U/M Price Ea Amount

AE45A 230 GR FULL METAL JACKET.. 4 cs 306.26 1,225.04
AE223 55 GR FMJ BOAT-TAIL.. 8 cs 142.85 1,142.80
24446 223 REM 55 GOLD DOT SP 1 cs 269.90 269.90
AE9FP 147 GR FULL METAL JACKET FLAT POINT 1 cs 194.90 194.90
FET EXEMPT 11% FET EXEMPTION FOR STATE OR MUNICIPAL

AGENCIES
0.00

SHIPPING REDDAWAY PALLET 1 139.00 139.00

$2,971.64



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4 



Cell: 208-960-2883 
Office: 208442-4470 
Fax: 844-351-6902

QUANTITY DESCRIPTION UNIT PRICE AMOUNT

CUSTOMER 22
Coat entire structure 72" X 22ft deep with Raven 405 
Epoxy coating 

$475.00 $10,450.00

City of Middleton 
1 Mobilization $500.00 $500.00

1 24 hour pump watch $1,000.00 $1,000.00

DATE 1 Flow diversion bypass pumping - Set up and tear down $4,500.00 $4,500.00

5/6/2021
N/A Infiltration control by the gallon - Material $225.00

ADDRESS N/A Infiltration control by the hour - Labor $125.00

This price does not include infiltration mitigation work will 
be charged by the gallon of material used and by the hour 
for labor. If we find infiltration present whle preparing the 
structure for Raven Coating we will notify the Owner prior 
to doing any work. 

$0.00

PHONE $0.00

$0.00

E-MAIL $0.00

$0.00

SALESPERSON $0.00

Cody Aberasturi 
$0.00

PROJECT $0.00

Park Place Lift Station 
$0.00

PREPARED BY: $0.00

Richard Mason 
$0.00

ATTENTION $0.00

Terrell $0.00

PAYMENT TERMS $0.00

$0.00

TOTA L $16,450.00

THIS PROPOSAL INCLUDES THE CONDITIONS NOTED:

Date

Sign Below to Accept Quote:

Authorized Rep

Thank You For You Business  

PROPOSAL
Integrity Inspection Solutions, Inc. 

204 S Dudley Ln Nampa, ID 83687                                                                  
integrity@iispipeline.com 

Owner must provide clear access to the upstream and downstream manholes. • 
Integrity Inspection Solutions is not responsible for any Traffic Control, Bypass 
Pumping or Permitting unless otherwise stated in the proposal portion of this 
document.

Public Works Contractors License Number 036543-C-4 



22 April 2021

SUBJECT: Middleton, ID Lift Station Project

Advanced Lining, LLC is pleased to offer the following pricing to install the OBIC 1000 product onto a
6’ x 22’ lift station in Middleton, ID.

Lining Cost $8,350

Mobilization Cost $3,620

Bypassing pumps and equipment (provided by Rain For Rent) $2,700

Overnight bypass monitoring (per night cost, estimating 3 nights but will bill
actual)

$1,500 per
night

Total (with 3 nights on bypass) $19,180

Conditions & Clarifications:

● This quote is good for 30 days
● Pricing is for installation of the OBIC Liner System including surface preparation, average leak stoppage,

materials for minor concrete patching, installation and supervision
● Includes up to 1 gallon of chemical grout per structure. If additional is required it will be billed at $125.00

per gallon
● Water source to fill pressure washer tank provided by city
● Location to park application truck overnight required
● Requires Application Truck access within 200’ of the manholes to be provided. Off road locations require

safe access and assistance if needed
● Permits, Fees and Inspector Rates are not included in this quote

The OBIC Liner System Provides a 10 Year Warranty

Upon agreeing to the terms we ask you acknowledge in the area below and email it back. Should
you have any questions regarding this proposal, please feel free to call me.

Thank you,
Seth Huggins Signature:   _________________________
Advanced Lining, LLC Name:        _________________________

Advanced Lining, LLC
Layton, UT
801-989-8874
sales@advlining.com
advlining.com

mailto:seth@advlining.com


801-989-8874 Mobile                                           P.O. #:       __________________________
seth@advlining.com Date:          __________________________

Advanced Lining, LLC
Layton, UT
801-989-8874
sales@advlining.com
advlining.com

mailto:seth@advlining.com
mailto:seth@advlining.com


 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

5 







 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

6 







 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

7 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

8 



Crrv or MDoLeroN
PO Box 487, 1103 W. MarN Sr

MTDDLEToN,ID 83644
208 585-3133. 208-58s-9601 FAx

!ll!!e\.q!!qc\!1!,!!-t

ADMNISTRATION

BI,ER WINE
APPLr( ATloN,/LI('ENsE

ApplicantName: P?ri f ,6LjctnS
BusinessName: )L{' bt,X acr'll

Business Address (Sheet{P.O. Box/City/Zip): ZO( \r",h,ra,rh 5-

YEAR June 1, 2018- May 31, 2019 lOrnCrUSrOtLy'

g Nor Lictnse I orauo,
E' Renewal

S.{LE FOR ON-PRf, \IISE CONSUI\IPTION

() ) BEER (s2oo.oo)
( .. ) wlNE ($200.00)

SALE FOR OFT'-PREM ISE CONST]NIP'I'ION

( ) BEER (550.00)
( ) \\'rNE ($200.00)

LICENSE

#

Business phone: 2D< 5*5.3D41 otherPhone: 5t 5 . 3b( ttl ?K

Emairaddress: )Vebax cp, QE 4* ,\O , 4i,n-

C Anuch utpy o! upplication fot Stdte license, inclading a copl' rl site and lloor plans suhriitted vilh stotc appliattiotL

a Afioch

Dale

Beveruge Licenses before a Cit! licefise will be issued.

fu'Vtlct

LICENSE
Application Approved by City Council on (date):
Application Denied:
License is hereby issued this _ day of

City Clerk

Notes:

20 _.

MailingAddress(S treetlP.o.BoxlciqtZ*1, ]3q .>' L..r'",5irl .t Ln r'i\,il /, Ile ft|,



2021-2022 RETAIL ALCOHOL BEVERAGE LICENSE

CANYON COUNTY,ID
STATE OF IDAHO

202t284

This is to certfy, that Marwood, INC

dba:208 Burger Q

is licensed hereby as a retailer ofalcohol beverage, as stated below, to the provisions of Title 23, Idaho Code and
the laws ofthe State ofldaho and regulations and ordinances ofBoard of County Commissioners in regard to the
sale of alcoholic beverage at: 308 W MAIN ST., MIDDLETON, ID 83644

Beer

aaaaaaaaaa*

Elottled or canncd, consumed ON premises

WINE by thc drinkr (This covers Rctail & tsy the Drink)

aaaaaaaaaa

License valid until Mav 31, 2022

s75.00

$100.00

Signature ofLicensce or Oflicer of Corporation

APPROVED by the Board of County Commissioners this '? llitkny of i, i Ii, , ,:li ,{
Mail To: 23412 LANSING LN, MIDDLETON, ID 83644

Ch,J"a/"^.-e-
Clcrk

(l HIS LIC]]NSE MUST BH (1)NSPICUOUSLY



,gt* "/at/"/-- ldaho State Police -
Cycle Tracking Number: 126261

Premises Number: 2C-31045 Retail AlcohO! BeVerage LiCenSe License Year: 2022

License Number: 31045

Acceptance of a license by a reta.iler shall constitute knowledge of and agreement lo operate by and in
accordance to the Alcohol Beverage Code, Title 23. Only the licensee herein specified,chall use this license.
Coun+' dnd cifi' licenscs are also required i order to operate.

This is to certify, that Marwood, lnc

doing business as: 208 Burger Q

is licensed to sell alcoholic beverages as stated below at:
308 W. Main St, Middleton, Canyon County

Liquor
Beer
Wine by the bottle
Wine by the glass
Kegs to go

Growlers
Restaurant
On-premises consumption
Multipurpose arena
Plaza

TOTAL FEE: $0.00

Signature of Licensee, Corporate Officer, LLC Member or Partner

MARWOOD, INC
208 BURGER Q
23412 LANSING LN

MIDDLETON, ID 83644

Mailinq Address

License Valid: 0610112021 -0513112022

No
Yes $0.00
No
Yes $0.00
No
No
Yes $0.00
Yes $0.00
No
No

Expires: 0513112022 E1+#HEI

uJo
UJ

9
J
9.
-F
l!o
t
IIJ
l!oz
t]-
uo
UJJ
o
to
lJ-
uJo
a
uJ
al,t
uJ

uJt
IU
uJo

ABC FORM NO ABC 03



' {:4 1:

l/we, the undersigned,

Alcoh0l License No.:

Alcoao! Beverage Cantrol
700 S. Stratford Dr. lite l'15

Meridian, lD 83642
Phone: (208) 884-1060

AFFIDAVIT - RELEASE OF LICENSE

regarding herein named license:

: Premises lD No.:

doing business as . loiated in the city ol

Ccur:ty of State of ldaho. transferred cn ahis dav of

20*__. the use of said license to the lollowino person{s) or entitv (new applicant name(s)):

W
State Police

Nare Address

Name Address

Naane Address

DiSCLAIMER: This affidavit cannot be construEd to alfect any agraements botwoan ,ssignor(s) and assignee(s),

Assrgnor's Signature(s):

0n th,s __," __day of
ihe $lale of

20 __., b+iore me, the undersigned, a notary public in and tor
personally appeared

known to me to be the person(s) whose name(s) islare subscribed to the foregoing inslrument and acknowledged to me
that is)he/they executed the same-

Notary Public
(Seal) Residing at

EH 10.C2-07 Affidavi: of Release of License9/2009

My Commission Expires



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

9  



  

300 E. Mallard Drive, Suite 350, Boise, Idaho  83706      Tel: 208-383-4140       Fax: 208-383-4156      www.spfwater.com 

 
July 2, 2021 
 
Becky Crofts 
City of Middleton 
1103 W Main St. 
Middleton, ID 83644 

Sent via email to: bcrofts@middletoncity.com  

Subject:  Proposal for Water Master Plan Revisions 

Dear Becky, 

SPF Water Engineering, LLC (SPF) is pleased to provide the following scope of work and fee 
estimate for consulting engineering services related to the planning study of revising the water 
master plan for the City. 

BACKGROUND 

SPF performed an update to the water master plan in 2019/2020.  Since the development of this 
update there has been development requests and significant growth.  The City anticipates an 
increased growth pattern in addition to what was originally used for the update in 2019/2020.  The 
City would like to include the following items as part of a revision to the Water Master Plan Update: 

 Develop a declining balance plan based on the current three pressure zones available 
and incorporating the City’s revised area of impact.  The intent of this study is to integrate 
results into the Master Plan Update report and to use as a separate planning guide as 
future development requests for water service occur. 

 Include new water users into the model that were connected into the City’s system after 
the master plan update was created. 

 Develop a capital improvement plan (CIP) based upon the revised growth projections such 
that they are in-line with recent wastewater treatment plan upgrades. 

SCOPE OF WORK 

SPF proposes the following scope of work. 

Task 1 – Revise Hydraulic Model.  SPF will revise the current hydraulic model to include 
additional users (~300) that have since been added to the water system since the last master 
plan update.  The model will also be revised to incorporate the updated growth projections 
provided from the wastewater treatment plant upgrade project.  The model will allocate demands 
based upon the added users and will look at the 20-year projected water demands.  Scenarios 
will be re-run for the revised master plan update.   

Task 2 – Declining Balance Review.  SPF will develop a declining balance overview using the 
City’s current three pressure zones and the revised City Area of Impact.  This review will 
incorporate the revised hydraulic model and updated meter information.  Suggested fire flows by 
building type/use were also provided by the City Fire Department for analyzing fire flow events for 
the Update.  The declining balance will utilize well information and current flow demands to 
determine water availability for growth. 



City of Middleton  July 2, 2021 

 2 

Deliverable: A stand-alone Technical Memorandum will be presented for the City’s review and 
comment related to the Declining Balance study.  It is anticipated that the report will include tables 
showing a declining balance of demands as they currently stand, and exhibits referencing the 
stages of growth per zone.   

Task 3 – Impacts to Service Area.  This task will examine the available declining balance 
demands as determine in Tasks 1 and 2 and will analyze the existing infrastructure per zone in 
relation to the City’s service area.  It is anticipated that nine (9) scenarios will be added to the 
hydraulic model: Zone 1 growth to the south (1), east (2), and west (3) areas; Zone 2 growth to 
the north (4), and west (5); Zone 3 to the north (6) and east (7); and, a proposed Zone 4 to the 
north. 

Deliverable: Based upon the comments received from the technical memorandum in Task 2 and 
results of Task 3, the Master Plan Update will be revised and provided as a Final report for the 
City’s review and comment.  Comments will be incorporated into the Master Plan Update and 
submitted to IDEQ for review. 

SCOPE OF WORK - NOT INCLUDED IN PROPOSAL 

These items are not currently included in this contract.  Additional services may be added to future 
contracts. 

 Locations of Well Sources  Water rights work 
 Design/Construction Support  Population Forecasting 

Any services listed above may be added to SPF’s scope of work upon request.  However, it is 
anticipated they are not necessary or will be provided by others under separate contracts. 

SCHEDULE 

SPF’s anticipates starting the efforts associated with Task 1 within three weeks of the City 
providing a notice to proceed with completion of a draft technical memorandum eight weeks after 
the start date .  This estimate is provided based on current workload obligations and conditions 
as of the date of this proposal.   

FEE ESTIMATE 

SPF proposes to perform the scope of work described above on a time and materials basis. 
Estimated costs for individual tasks are summarized in Table 1 below and excess amounts from 
one task may be utilized on another. SPF’s current hourly rate schedule is provided as Table 2. 
Direct costs (photocopy, postage, subcontractors, etc.) are billed at actual cost plus 15%. Invoices 
will be sent on a monthly basis. 

Table 1. Estimated Costs by Task 

Task Fee 

TASK 1 - Revise Hydraulic Model  $       23,300  

TASK 2 - Declining Balance  $         5,550  

TASK 3 - Impacts to Service Area  $         8,400  

TOTAL FEE  $       37,250  

 



City of Middleton  July 2, 2021 

 3 

AGREEMENT 

If this proposal meets with your approval, it may serve as the basis for agreement, in conjunction 
with the attached schedule of fees and conditions, by affixing a signature in the space provided 
below.  This signature will be considered as a notice to proceed with a budget of $37,250.   

Please return a signed copy to our office.  We look forward to working with you on this project. 

Respectfully submitted, Accepted By: 
SPF WATER ENGINEERING, LLC CITY OF MIDDLETON 
 
By  _____________________________  By  ______________________________  
 Michael Boeck, P.E. 
 Principal  Title  ________________________________  
 
   Date  ________________________________  



City of Middleton  July 2, 2021 

 4 

 

SPF WATER ENGINEERING, LLC  

SCHEDULE OF HOURLY BILLING RATES 

Personnel Title 
2021 

Billing 
Rate 

Terry Scanlan, P.E., P.G. Principal Engineer/Hydrogeologist $185  

Christian Petrich, Ph.D., P.E., P.G. Principal Engineer/Hydrologist Emeritus $185  

Bob Hardgrove, P.E. Principal Engineer $167  

Mike Boeck, P.E. Principal Engineer $167  

Matt Rasmusson, P.E. Senior Project Manager $156  

Steve Hannula, P.E., P.G., PMP Senior Project Manager $156  

Jason Thompson, P.E. Senior Project Manager $156  

Justin Leraris, P.E. Senior Project Manager $156  

Mike Kettner, P.E. Project Manager $144  

Scott King, P.E. Project Manager $140  

Peter Vidmar, P.E. Senior Project Engineer $133  

Lucas Glauser, P.E. Senior Project Engineer $125  

Grae Harper, P.E. Project Engineer $108  

Marci Pape, P.E. Project Engineer $100  

Holten White, P.E. Project Engineer $97  

Sean Albertson, E.I.T. Associate Engineer $95  

Andrew Francis, P.G. Project Hydrogeologist $95  

Lori Graves Senior Water Right Specialist $104  

Patrick Kelly Project Hydrologist $101  

Brad Mathews Senior Designer $98  

Crystal Jensen GIS Specialist $82  

Julie Romano Accounting $65  

Kalli Everhart Project Coordinator $65  

Jackie Heriza Administrative Support $55  

Note: Hourly billing rates will be adjusted on January 1st each year. 



City of Middleton  July 2, 2021 

 5 

SCHEDULE OF FEES AND CONDITIONS 

SPF WATER ENGINEERING, LLC (SPF) 

 

A. FEES AND PAYMENT 

1. The fee for services will be based on SPF's standard hourly rates (including labor cost, overhead, and profit).  Non-salary 
expenses directly attributable to the project, such as: (1) living and traveling expenses of employees when away from the 
home office on business connected with the project; (2) identifiable reproduction costs applicable to the work; and (3) 
outside services will be charged at actual cost plus 15% service charge to cover overhead and administration.   Hourly 
rates are adjusted on an annual basis. 

2. Payment shall be due within 30 days after date of monthly invoice describing the work performed and expenses incurred 
during the preceding month. 

3. OWNER agrees that timely payment is a material term of this Agreement and that failure to make timely payment as 
agreed constitutes a breach hereof.  In the event payment for services rendered has not been made within 60 days from 
the date of invoice, SPF may, after giving 7 days written notice to OWNER, and without penalty or liability of any nature, 
and without waiving any claim against OWNER, suspend all work on all authorized services as set forth herein.  Upon 
receipt of payment in full for services rendered, plus interest charges, SPF will continue with all services not inconsistent 
with Article C.4 herein.  Payment of all compensation due SPF pursuant to this Agreement shall be a condition precedent 
to OWNER using any of SPF's professional services work products furnished under this Agreement. 

4. In order to defray carrying charges resulting from delayed payments, simple interest at the rate of 18% per annum (but 
not exceeding the maximum rate allowed by law) will be added to the unpaid balance of each invoice.  The interest period 
shall commence 30 days after date of original invoice, and shall terminate upon date of payment.  Payments will be first 
credited to interest and then to principal.  No interest charge will be added during the initial 30-day period following date 
of invoice. 

B. COMMENCEMENT OF WORK.  The work will commence upon receipt of written notice to proceed.  If after 
commencement of work the project is delayed for any reason beyond the control of SPF for more than 60 days, the price 
and schedule for services under this Agreement are subject to revision.  Subsequent modifications shall be in writing and 
signed by the parties to this Agreement. 

C. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 
 1. INSURANCE/INDEMNIFICATION/LIMITATION OF LIABILITY 

(a)  SPF will maintain statutory limits of insurance coverage for Workers’ Compensation and Employer’s Liability 
Insurance as well as Professional Liability, General Liability and Automobile Liability Insurance and will name 
Owner as an additional insured on applicable policies if specifically requested in writing. 

(b) SPF asserts that it is skilled in the professional calling necessary to the services and duties proposed to be 
performed, and that it shall perform such services and duties in conformance to and consistent with the 
standards generally recognized as being employed by professionals of SPF's caliber in the same locality, and 
to that end SPF agrees to indemnify and hold harmless Owner, its officers, and employees from and against 
claims, suits, loss, damages, costs, and expenses arising out of or resulting from the negligent acts, errors, or 
omissions of SPF, its officers, employees or agents in the performance of its services and duties hereunder, but 
not from the negligence or willful misconduct of Owner, its officers, and employees.  However, in no event 
shall SPF be liable for any special, indirect, or consequential damages as a result of its performance of the 
services hereunder.  The total aggregate of SPF's liability to all parties related to this Agreement shall not 
exceed $50,000, or the amount of SPF's fee, whichever is less. 

(c) Owner hereby understands and agrees that SPF has not created nor contributed to the creation or existence of 
any or all types of hazardous or toxic wastes, materials, chemical compounds, or substances, or any other type 
of environmental hazard or pollution, whether latent or patent, at Owner's premises, or in connection with or 
related to this project with respect to which SPF has been retained to provide professional engineering services.  
The compensation to be paid SPF for said professional engineering services is in no way commensurate with, 
and has not been calculated with reference to, the potential risk of injury or loss which may be caused by the 
exposure of persons or property to such substances or conditions.  Therefore, to the fullest extent permitted by 
law, Owner agrees to defend, indemnify, and hold SPF, its officers, directors, employees, and consultants, 
harmless from and against any and all claims, damages, and expenses, whether direct, indirect, or 



City of Middleton  July 2, 2021 

 6 

consequential, including but not limited to, attorney's fees and court costs, arising out of, or resulting from the 
discharge, escape, release, or saturation of smoke, vapors, soot, fumes, acid, alkalies, toxic chemicals, liquids, 
gases, or any other materials, irritants, contaminants, or pollutants in or into the atmosphere, or on, onto, upon, 
in, or into the surface or subsurface of soil, water, or watercourses, objects, or any tangible or intangible matter, 
whether sudden or not. 

(d) Nothing contained within this Agreement shall be construed or interpreted as requiring SPF to assume the 
status of a generator, storer, transporter, treater, or disposal facility as those terms appear within the Resource 
Conservation and Recovery Act, 42 USCA, §6901 et seq., as amended, or within any state statute governing 
the generation, treatment, storage, and disposal of waste.  Further, the contents of this Agreement shall not be 
construed or interpreted as requiring SPF to arrange for the transportation, treatment, or disposal of hazardous 
substances, as described in the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation, and Liability Act, 42 
USCA §9601, et.seq., as amended. 

(e) Notwithstanding any provisions in this Agreement to the contrary, if this project involves construction, as that 
term is generally understood, and SPF does not provide engineering services during construction, including but 
not limited to, on-site monitoring, site visits, shop drawing review, and design clarifications, Owner agrees to 
defend, indemnify, and hold SPF, its consultants, agents, and employees harmless from any and all liability 
arising out of the construction. 

(f) SPF shall not be liable for damages arising out of or resulting from the actions or inaction of governmental 
agencies, including but not limited to, permit processing, environmental impact reports, dedications, general 
plans and amendments thereto, zoning matters, annexations or consolidations, use or conditional use permits, 
and building permits.  Owner agrees to defend, indemnify, and hold SPF, its consultants, agents, and employees 
harmless from any and all liability, other than that caused by the negligent acts, errors, or omissions of SPF, 
arising out of or resulting from the same. 

(g) Notwithstanding other terms of this Agreement to the contrary, SPF makes no warranty, whether express or 
implied, as to the actual capacity or drawdown of any proposed water well(s), or the quality or temperature of 
ground water, if any, which may be produced by any water well(s) to be drilled and developed pursuant to this 
Agreement.  Owner understands and agrees that SPF's responsibility under this Agreement is to apply its 
hydrogeology expertise, and to exercise the usual standard of care in the engineering profession to develop 
what ground water may reasonably exist, and may be economically feasible to use, beneath the proposed site(s). 

 2. DOCUMENTS 
(a) All tracings, survey notes, and other original documents, as instruments of service, are and shall remain the 

property of SPF, except where by law or precedent these documents become public property.  Owner agrees to 
hold harmless, indemnify, and defend SPF, its consultants, agents, and employees against all damages, claims, 
expenses, and losses arising out of any reuse of the plans and specifications without the written authorization 
of SPF. 

(b) All computer programs, software, and other like data developed during the course of the project, unless 
specifically developed for Owner, are and shall remain the sole property of SPF. 

(c) SPF's liability to Owner for any computer programs, software products, or related data furnished hereunder is 
limited solely to the correction of residual errors, minor maintenance, or update(s) as agreed.  SPF makes no 
warranties of any kind, including any implied warranty of merchantability or of fitness for any particular 
purpose, or against infringement, with respect to computer programs, software products, related data, technical 
information, or technical assistance provided by SPF under this Agreement.  In no event shall SPF, its officers, 
agents, or employees be liable under or in connection with this Agreement under any theory of tort, contract, 
strict liability, negligence, or other legal or equitable theory for incidental or consequential damages relating to 
any computer programs, software products, or related data furnished hereunder. 

 (d) Environmental Audit/Site Assessment report(s) are prepared for Owner's sole use.  Owner agrees to defend, 
indemnify, and hold SPF, its consultants, agents, and employees harmless against all damages, claims, 
expenses, and losses arising out of or resulting from any reuse of the Environmental Audit/Site Assessment 
report(s) without the written authorization of SPF. 

 3. TERMINATION OR ABANDONMENT.  If any portion of the work is terminated or abandoned by Owner, the 
provisions of this Schedule of Fees and Conditions in regard to compensation and payment shall apply insofar as possible 
to that portion of the work not terminated or abandoned.  If said termination occurs prior to completion of any phase of 
the project, the fee for services performed during such phase shall be based on SPF's reasonable estimate of the portion 
of such phase completed prior to said termination, plus a reasonable amount to reimburse SPF for termination costs. 



City of Middleton  July 2, 2021 

 7 

 4. WAIVER.  SPF's waiver of any term, condition, or covenant or breach of any term, condition, or covenant, shall not 
constitute a waiver of any other term, condition, or covenant, or the breach thereof. 

 5. ENTIRE AGREEMENT.  This Agreement, and its attachments, contains the entire understanding between Owner and 
SPF relating to professional engineering services.  Any prior or contemporaneous agreements, promises, negotiations, or 
representations not expressly set forth herein are of no effect.  Subsequent modifications or amendments to this 
Agreement shall be in writing and signed by the parties to this Agreement. 

 6. SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS.  All of the terms, conditions, and provisions hereof shall inure to the benefit of and be 
binding upon the parties hereto, and their respective successors and assigns. 

 7. CONSTRUCTION ESTIMATES.  Estimates of cost for the facilities considered and designed under this Agreement 
are prepared by SPF through exercise of its experience and judgement in applying presently available cost data, but it is 
recognized that SPF has no control over costs of labor and materials, or over the construction contractor's methods of 
determining prices, or over competitive bidding procedures, market conditions, and unknown field conditions so that SPF 
cannot and does not guarantee that proposals, bids, or the project construction costs will not vary from SPF's cost 
estimates. 

 8. INJURY TO WORKERS.  It is understood and agreed that SPF's fee is based on SPF being named as an Additional 
Insured on construction contractor's insurance policy for Comprehensive General Liability and Builders All Risk 
Liability, and Owner agrees to insert into all contracts for construction between Owner and construction contractor(s) 
arising out of this design a provision requiring the construction contractor(s) to defend, indemnify, and hold harmless 
both Owner and SPF from any and all actions arising out of the construction project, including but not limited to, injury 
to or death of any worker on the job site, not caused by the sole negligence of Owner or SPF. 

 9. SITE VISITS.  Visits to the construction site and observations made by SPF as part of services during construction under 
this Agreement shall not make SPF responsible for, nor relieve the construction contractor(s) of the obligation to conduct 
comprehensive monitoring of the work sufficient to ensure conformance with the intent of the Contract Documents, and 
shall not make SPF responsible for, nor relieve the construction contractor(s) of the full responsibility for all construction 
means, methods, techniques, sequences, and procedures necessary for coordinating and completing all portions of the 
work under the construction contract(s), and for all safety precautions incidental thereto.  Such visits by SPF are not to 
be construed as part of the monitoring duties of the on-site monitoring personnel defined below. 

 10.  ON-SITE MONITORING.  When SPF provides on-site monitoring personnel as part of services during construction 
under this Agreement, the on-site monitoring personnel will make reasonable efforts to guard Owner against defects and 
deficiencies in the work of the contractor(s), and to help determine if the provisions of the Contract Documents are being 
fulfilled.  Their day-to-day monitoring will not, however, cause SPF to be responsible for those duties and responsibilities 
which belong to the construction contractor(s), including but not limited to, full responsibility for the means, methods, 
techniques, sequences, and progress of construction, and the safety precautions incidental thereto, and for performing the 
construction work in accordance with the Contract Documents. 

11.  SEVERABILITY.  If any provision of this Agreement is declared invalid, illegal, or incapable of being enforced by any 
court of competent jurisdiction, all of the remaining provisions of this Agreement shall nevertheless continue in full force 
and effect, and no provision shall be deemed dependent upon any other provision unless so expressed herein. 

12.  DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY APPROVAL.  If applicable to the contracted scope of work, 

SPF will submit the required documents for the proposed facilities to the Department of Environmental Quality or state 
equivalent (Approving Agency) for the appropriate reviews and approvals.  Under no circumstances may construction 

begin on the proposed facilities prior to receipt of Approving Agency’s written approval of the reports, plans, and 

specifications for the proposed facilities.  As professional engineers, SPF’s employees are obligated to report to the 
Approving Agency any construction that begins prior to receipt of the appropriate approvals. 

 
 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

10 



Current Renewal Proposal
Blue Cross Blue Cross Regence

Individual Deductible 250$                       250$                       4,250$                   
Family Deductible 500$                       500$                       8,500$                   

Employee Max Out of Pocket 1,750$                   1,750$                   4,250$                   
Family Max Out of Pocket 3,000$                   3,000$                   8,500$                   

Employee Only 7 865.55$                 916.48$                 578.58$                 
Employee + Spouse 7 1,857.41$              1,966.69$              1,157.16$              

Employee + Child 2 1,218.05$              1,289.72$              1,099.30$              
Employee + Chidlren 3 1,709.70$              1,810.29$              1,099.30$              

Employee + Family 6 2,578.82$              2,730.55$              1,677.88$              

Monthly Premium 25 42,098.84$           44,575.80$           27,713.96$           
Annual Premium 505,186.08$         534,909.60$         332,567.52$         

BUY DOWN TOTALS
Employees would pay

0% of Employee Premiums -$                        -$                        -$                        
50% of Dependent Premiums 10,230.05$            10,831.90$            6,624.73$              

Employee Out of Pocket contribution 1,500.00$              
Dependent(s) Out of Pocket contribution 1,500.00$              

Employer would pay
100% of Employee Premiums 21,638.75$            22,912.00$            14,464.50$            
50% of Dependent Premiums 10,230.05$            10,831.90$            6,624.73$              

Monthly Premiums Total 31,868.80$           33,743.90$           21,089.23$           
Annual Premiums Total 382,425.54$         404,926.80$         253,070.76$         

Annual Employer MAX Risk of OOPM 118,250.00$         
ANNUAL Employer portion 382,425.54$         404,926.80$         371,320.76$         

Annual Savings over renewal (33,606.04)$          

 *based on 2021 3rd 
Quarter rates 

3380 W. Americana Terrace, Suite 330  Boise, Idaho  83706
(208) 395-0109

jreynolds
Rectangle

jreynolds
Rectangle



 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 Frequently Asked Questions about your HRA

1 . What is a Health Reimbursement Account (HRA)?
The HRA is an employer-sponsored plan that can be used to reimburse a portion of you and
your eligible family member’s out-of-pocket medical expenses, such as deductibles,
coinsurance and pharmacy expenses. It is not an insurance program, but a financial
reimbursement plan funded entirely by your employer. Your employer has designated a
specific dollar amount to credit to the account (either monthly or annual contributions). You
choose which out-of-pocket qualified medical expenses you would like to submit for
reimbursement. Unused account balances will be rolled over to the following plan year
provided your employer continues to offer the program and you remain enrolled in it.

2. Do I have to have health insurance to have a health reimbursement arrangement (HRA)?
HRAs are usually provided by employees to complement a higher-deductible health plan
(HDHP), but can be paired with any type of health plan or offered alone. Once you have used
your HRA funds, you pay all new and remaining expenses out of pocket.

3. Who can put money in my HRA?
HRAs are fully owned and funded by the employer.

4. How do I know how much is contributed to my HRA each plan year?
At the beginning of each plan year, your employer will notify you of the amount they will
contribute to your HRA for that plan year.

5. Do I need to enroll each plan period?
Yes. All eligible employees must enroll each year during the open enrollment period. Your
employer will instruct you on how to complete enrollment.

6. Can I be reimbursed for my dependents’ medical expenses?
Yes, as long as your dependent meets the definition of a dependent as defined by the IRS
and is included in your employer’s plan.

APA Benefits, Inc.         Account Access available at www.apabenefits.com
8899 S 700 E Suite 225                                                                            Customer Service  1-888-311-7478
Sandy, UT 84070                                                                                                              Fax   1-801-561-5056

http://www.apabenefits.com/


 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

7. What is an eligible health care expense?
Eligible expenses under an HRA plan are determined by your employer. Contact your human
resources department for information about your HRA plan design and eligible expenses.
Generally, the following expenses are eligible under an HRA plan:

• Health insurance deductibles
• Coinsurance and co-pays
• Other expenses included in IRS Publication 502—Medical and Dental Expenses as

eligible or qualified expenses
• Some insurance premiums

Eligible expenses must be incurred by the employee and/or eligible members of the
employee’s family, and take place within the benefit plan year.

8. Is there a minimum claim amount?
There is no minimum claim amount; however, your plan may place a minimum on the
reimbursement account (usually $1 5). If your eligible claim amount is less than the minimum, it
will be held until additional claims are submitted.

9. What’s the maximum reimbursement amount from my HRA?
Your HRA benefit amount is determined by your employer. Most plans will reimburse eligible
expenses up to the full available balance in your HRA. If your plan is based on an accrual,
you'll only be reimbursed the amount that you've earned in the plan. Contact your benefits
department for specific information about your plan design.

1 0. Do funds carry over at the end of the plan period?
Any unused amounts left in the accounts at the end of the plan period may or may not be
carried over into the next plan period depending on your plan. You have access to these
funds from year to year as long as you remain an eligible employee and carryover is
permitted by your plan. You may even have access to funds after termination of employment,
if permitted by the plan.

APA Benefits, Inc.         Account Access available at www.apabenefits.com
8899 S 700 E Suite 225                                                                            Customer Service  1-888-311-7478
Sandy, UT 84070                                                                                                              Fax   1-801-561-5056

http://www.apabenefits.com/


             Addendum A
Effective 7/1/2021

HRA ADMINISTRATION FEE SCHEDULE

Annual/One Time Fees
• HRA Document Fee $150.00

We Require all HRA plans to have their required ERISA Document on file.  If the group doesn't have
a current document, we'll write the document.  The fee is a one time fee and isn't charged

• Amendment Fee $75.00
Only charged when the group requires a plan amendment

• Non Discrimination Testing $150.00
Annual non discrimination testing will be performed this includes the eligibility, Benefits and 105(h).

Monthly Fees
• HRA Account Reimbursement

This covers the cost of the reimbursement account and card for each employee. Fee is per employee 
enrolled per month.

• 0-100 Enrolled $3.50 pepm or $3.00 pepm non carded
Services Provided

• Account Discrimination Testing
• IRS and DOL Compliance
• 5500 Preparation and Filing if required
• Daily Claims Administration
• Online Account Access
• Debit Cards
• Stacked Benefit Card Accounts
• Dedicated Service Team
• Online Claims
• Employer Account Balance Reports
• Employee Account Balance Statements
• Employee Enrollment Materials

SET UP
• Service Agreements Signed 25 days prior
• Build out HRA System 25 days prior
• Build out EDI Feeds 20 days prior
• Setup of Funding 15 days prior
• Send out Welcome Emails to Participants 2-3 days prior
• Train Employer on HRA portal 7 days prior

Testing and Training
• All fees are guaranteed for a five year period of time
• We require a 30 day notice for any termination


	1e) FCO Stonehaven Comm 12.5 - for signature.pdf
	In the Matter of the Request of Todd Campbell and Jaylen Walker (the “Applicant’) for Rezone and Development Agreement Modification of the 11.18 acre Stonehaven Commercial project located at the intersection of Willis Road and Hartley Lane (Tax Parcel...
	A. Findings of Fact: The Middleton City Council accepts the facts as outlined in the staff report (incorporated herein by this reference and made a part hereof as if set forth in full, a copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit A), public testimony...
	1. Hearing Facts:
	i. The Development Agreement and C-1 Zoning have been in place on the property since 2012. The property Owner was the person who requested and applied for the 2012 Development Agreement.
	ii. The Property is approximately surrounded by R-3 single family homes and would require use of already overly burdened City services and roads, including Hartley Lane and Middleton Road.
	iii. Additionally, see the facts outlined in the Staff Report for the hearing date of June 16, 2021, which Report is attached hereto as Exhibit “A’ and incorporated herein by this reference.
	2. Procedural Status and Planning and Zoning Commission Recommendation: See the facts outlined in the Staff Report for the hearing date of June 16, 2021, which Report is attached hereto as Exhibit “A’ and incorporated herein by this reference.
	3. Application and Property Facts: See the facts outlined in the Staff Report for the hearing date of June 16, 2021, which Report is attached hereto as Exhibit “A’ and incorporated herein by this reference.
	B. Conclusions of Law: The Middleton City Council has the authority to hear this case and order that it be approved or denied. The public notice requirements were met, the hearing was legally noticed and posted, and the hearing was held and conducted ...
	1. That the City of Middleton has the authority to exercise the powers conferred upon it by the “Local Land Use Planning Act of 1975,” codified at Chapter 65, Title 67, Idaho Code (I.C. §67-6503).
	2. That the City of Middleton properly exercised said authority.
	3. That due consideration has been given to the comment(s) received from the governmental subdivisions providing services in the City of Middleton planning jurisdiction and comment(s) received in written form and through public testimony.
	4. That notice of the application and public hearing were given according to law.
	5. That Planning and Zoning Commission’s and City Council’s public hearings were conducted according to law, and the City has kept a record of the application and related documents.
	6. That codes and standards applicable to the applications are the Idaho Standards for Public Works Construction, the Middleton Supplement to the Idaho Standards for Public Works Construction, and Middleton City Code 1-14, 1-16, 5-1, 5-2, 5-3, and 5-4.
	7. That the Development Agreement applicable to the property and the property’s  C-1 Zoning have been in place on the property since 2012.
	8. That Townhomes are inappropriate for the specific area because they are surrounded by R-3 single family homes and because, at that specific location, townhomes create a density that may overly burden City services and roads, including Hartley Lane ...
	9. That Townhomes are in conflict with Goals 4, 7, and 8 of the 2019 Middleton Comprehensive Plan because they detract from the City’s goals to promote commercial development, a diverse economy, and employment opportunities for residents, and that cre...
	10. That, given the foregoing, the application is in conflict with the Middleton Comprehensive Plan.

	C. Order of Decision:
	Pursuant to the City Council’s authority as provided in Middleton City Code 1-5-2, and based upon the Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law, the Mayor and City Council hereby order that the request for Rezone and Development Agreement Modification o...
	D. Modifications Presently Necessary to Gain Approval
	Applicants may be able to gain approval of the applications if they were to keep some C-1 Commercial property and provide R-3 housing instead of townhomes. Alternatively, the Applicants may be able to gain approval of the application if the Applicants...

	E. Right to Request Regulatory Taking Analysis
	The Applicants are hereby notified of their right to request a regulatory taking analysis pursuant to section 67-8003, Idaho Code.
	Staff Report with Appendix - FINAL.pdf
	Staff Report City Council.pdf
	Stonehaven – 11+ acre Commercial Parcel
	Rezone & Development Agreement Modification
	A. City Council Hearing Date: June 16, 2021
	B. Application Request and Project Description:    Request for Rezone and Development Agreement Modification of 11 acre parcel adjacent to the Stonehaven Subdivision (Tax Parcel No. 34443013 – 0 Hartley Lane.)  Applicant is requesting rezone from C-1 ...
	Applicant is also requesting a modification to the current Development Agreement to allow future preliminary plat and development of up to 84 townhomes in the M-F zone. Applicant has submitted a concept plan showing the potential future development of...
	C. History and Current Zoning:  This property was the subject of an earlier rezone and development agreement application in 2012. The property was zoned R-3 at that time, and applicant requested to have the property rezoned to C-1.  C-1 zoning is “Nei...
	D. Property Condition:  Since the time of the 2012 rezone to C-1, the property has remained vacant land with no commercial development. The parcel is surrounded on the north, east, and south sides by R-3 zoning and single-family homes. To the west is ...
	E. City Services:  City water and sewer are already located down the center of the parcel. Additionally, services are located immediately to the south of the parcel in the Stonehaven Subdivision.
	F. Traffic, Access & Streets:  Access to the subdivision is via Willis Road and also through the Stonehaven Subdivision to the south. The street improvements are already completed on the interior portions of the 11 acre+ parcel, but the frontage impro...
	G. Development Agreement:  A 2012 Development Agreement already exists with respect to this property.  Applicant is requesting a modification to add the following provisions and delete existing conditions in conflict with these seven provisions.
	a. 7.3 acres of the total 11 acres to be rezoned M-F Multi-Family. The remaining 3.7 acres to remain C-1 zoning.
	b. Developer to improve the parcel as generally shown in the Concept Plan to be attached to the modified DA.
	c. Developer may develop up to a maximum of 84 townhome lots, defined in the Middleton City Code as “Single Family Attached” in the M-F zoned portion of the parcel.
	d. Any future preliminary plat application must include a special use permit application for townhomes in compliance with MCC 5-4-1 Table 1.
	e. Developer will be required to submit a Traffic Study at the time development improvements begin.  The Traffic study will include the intersections of Willis & Hartley and Hartley & Hwy 44, and any other intersections the City Engineer deems necessary.
	f. Upon development, the Developer will improve all street frontages and dedicate improved right of way to the City.
	g. Upon development, the Developer will pay all proportionate share traffic fees as determined by the Traffic Study and City Engineer.
	H. Findings Required to Approve or Deny the Applications:  Per Middleton City Code 1-14-2, the City Council must make a reasoned statement explaining the basis for their decision. If the City Council chooses to deny the applications, City Council must...
	In making this reasoned statement with respect to the Rezone/Modified DA applications, Council must specifically consider the following:
	1. Does the rezone/DA Mod have a demonstrably adverse effect on the delivery of City services (sewer & water)?
	2. Is the Rezone/DA Modification is “in conflict” with the Comprehensive Plan or “in harmony” with the Comprehensive Plan?  If it is in conflict, then the applications should be denied. If it is in harmony, then the applications should be approved.
	Because City services are already on site, the City Council is left with considering only whether the rezone is in conflict with the Comp Plan or in harmony with the Comprehensive Plan.  To decide this, Council should look to the Goals and Strategies ...
	For instance, the Comprehensive Plan has Goals to promote commercial development, a diverse economy, and employment opportunities for residents. (Goals 7 and 8 in the 2019 Comprehensive Plan).  In light of these goals, the rezone/DA Mod may be in “con...
	However, the Comprehensive Plan also calls for (1) a variety of housing types and lot sizes, (2) multifamily and higher density housing near schools, transit stations and commercial areas, and (3) buffers between commercial and residential uses. (Goal...
	Again, the decision may come down to how much weight Council gives to one “Goal” over another “Goal.”
	I. Planning & Zoning Findings: At the May 10, 2021 Planning & Zoning Commission, the Commission denied the applications for rezone and development agreement modification. Minutes from the Meeting are attached this Staff Report.
	J. Comments Received from Surrounding Landowners:  None.
	K. Comments from Agencies: A May 7, 2021 analysis from COMPASS found that the mix of residential and commercial uses can mitigate the impact of increased traffic.
	A July 8, 2021 email from Black Canyon Irrigation stated that the District requires an easement for their ditches, and proper irrigation and drainage must be provided.
	A June 6, 2021 analysis from ITD found that the proposed subdivision of 82 townhomes will impact the intersection of Hartley Road and Highway 44, which is already deemed a “failing” intersection and in need of a signal control.  ITD estimates the cost...
	L. Applicant Information:  Application was received and accepted on April 5, 2021. The Applicants are Todd Campbell & Jay Walker P.O. Box 140298, Boise ID 83714.
	M. Notices & Neighborhood Meeting:    Dates:
	Newspaper Notification     05/30/2021
	Radius notification mailed to
	Adjacent landowners within 300’    05/28/2021
	Circulation to Agencies     05/28/2021
	Sign Posting property     05/28/2021
	Neighborhood Meeting     03/16/2021
	N. Applicable Codes and Standards:
	Idaho State Statue Title 67, Chapter 65
	Middleton City Code 1-14, 1-15, 5-1, 5-2, and 5-4.
	O. Conclusions and Recommended Conditions of Approval:
	The City Council is tasked with issuing a reasoned statement for its denial or approval of Applicant’s Rezone & DA Modification applications. Specifically, City Council must determine whether the application requests are “in conflict” or “in harmony” ...
	If the Council decides to deny the applications, State law requires the Council to identify what measures, if any, Applicant can take to gain approval.
	If Council is inclined to approve the applications, Planning Staff does not recommend any conditions of approval because any provisions that are necessary for future development are contained in the DA and/or handled by City Codes and Standards.
	Prepared by Middleton City Planner, Robert Stewart    Dated: 6/9/2021


	Staff Report City Council-Mon.pdf
	Stonehaven – 11+ acre Commercial Parcel
	Rezone & Development Agreement Modification
	A. City Council Hearing Date: June 16, 2021
	B. Application Request and Project Description:    Request for Rezone and Development Agreement Modification of 11+ acre parcel adjacent to the Stonehaven Subdivision (Tax Parcel No. 34443013 – 0 Hartley Lane.)  Applicant is requesting rezone from C-1...
	Applicant is also requesting a modification to the current Development Agreement to allow future preliminary plat and development of up to 84 townhomes in the M-F zone. Applicant has submitted a concept plan showing the potential future development of...
	C. History and Current Zoning:  In 2012, the current owner of the property had requested a rezone from R-3 to the current zoning of C-1.  C-1 zoning is “Neighborhood Commercial”, and it is a less intensive commercial use that services local neighborho...
	As to zoning, the parcel is surrounded on the north, east, and south sides by R-3 zoning and single-family homes. To the west is a large church parcel.
	D. City Services:  City water and sewer are already located down the center of the parcel. Additionally, services are located immediately to the south of the parcel in the Stonehaven Subdivision.
	E. Traffic, Access & Streets:  Access to the subdivision is via Willis Road and also through the Stonehaven Subdivision to the south. The street improvements are already completed on the interior portions of the 11 acre parcel, but the frontage improv...
	F. Development Agreement:  A 2012 Development Agreement already exists with respect to this property.  Applicant is requesting a modification to add the following provisions and delete existing provisions in conflict with these seven provisions:
	a. 7.3 acres of the total 11 acres to be rezoned M-F Multi-Family. The remaining 3.7 acres to remain C-1 zoning.
	b. Developer to improve the parcel as generally shown in the Concept Plan to be attached to the modified DA.
	c. In the M-F zoned portion of the parcel, Developer may develop up to a maximum of 84 townhome lots, which are defined in the Middleton City Code as “Single Family Attached”, and development must occur in compliance with all dimensional standards and...
	d. Any future preliminary plat application must include a special use permit application for townhomes in compliance with MCC 5-4-1 Table 1.
	e. Developer will be required to submit a Traffic Study at the time development improvements begin.  The Traffic study will include the intersections of Willis & Hartley and Hartley & Hwy 44, and any other intersections the City Engineer deems necessary.
	f. Upon development, the Developer will improve all street frontages and dedicate improved right of way to the City.
	g. Upon development, the Developer will pay all proportionate share traffic fees as determined by the Traffic Study and City Engineer.
	G. Findings Required to Approve or Deny the Applications:  Per Middleton City Code 1-14-2, the City Council must make a reasoned statement explaining the basis for their decision. If the City Council chooses to deny the applications, City Council must...
	In making this reasoned statement with respect to the Rezone/Modified DA applications, Council must specifically consider the following:
	1. Does the rezone/DA Mod have a demonstrably adverse effect on the delivery of City services (sewer & water)?
	2. Is the Rezone/DA Modification “in harmony” with the Comprehensive Plan or “in conflict” with the Comprehensive Plan?  If it is in harmony, then the applications should be approved. If it is in conflict, then the applications should be denied.
	Because City services are already on site, the City Council is left with considering only whether the rezone is in harmony with the Comp Plan or in conflict with the Comprehensive Plan.  To decide this, Council should look to the Goals and Strategies ...
	For instance, the Comprehensive Plan has Goals to promote commercial development, a diverse economy, and employment opportunities for residents. (Goals 7 and 8 in the 2019 Comprehensive Plan).  Additionally, City Council may find that keeping the parc...
	However, the Comprehensive Plan also calls for (1) a variety of housing types and lot sizes, (2) multifamily and higher density housing near schools, transit stations and commercial areas, and (3) buffers between commercial and residential uses. (Goal...
	Again, the decision may come down to how much weight Council gives to one “Goal” over another “Goal.”
	H. Planning & Zoning Findings: At the May 10, 2021 Planning & Zoning Commission, the Commission denied the applications for rezone and development agreement modification. Minutes from the Meeting are attached to this Staff Report.
	I. Comments Received from Surrounding Landowners:  None.  The Neighborhood Meeting sign in sheet noted simply that one nearby landowner was concerned about the lowering of home values and detriment caused by a gas station and/or liquor store.  See sig...
	J. Comments from Agencies: A May 7, 2021 analysis from COMPASS found that the mix of residential and commercial uses can mitigate the impact of increased traffic.
	A July 8, 2021 email from Black Canyon Irrigation stated that the District requires an easement for their ditches, and proper irrigation and drainage must be provided.
	A June 6, 2021 analysis from ITD found that the proposed subdivision of 82 townhomes will impact the intersection of Hartley Road and Highway 44, which is already deemed a “failing” intersection and in need of a signal control.  ITD estimates the cost...
	K. Applicant Information:  Application was received and accepted on April 5, 2021. The Applicants are Todd Campbell & Jay Walker P.O. Box 140298, Boise ID 83714.
	L. Notices & Neighborhood Meeting:    Dates:
	Newspaper Notification     05/30/2021
	Radius notification mailed to
	Adjacent landowners within 300’    05/28/2021
	Circulation to Agencies     05/28/2021
	Sign Posting property     05/28/2021
	Neighborhood Meeting     03/16/2021
	M. Applicable Codes and Standards:
	Idaho State Statue Title 67, Chapter 65
	Middleton City Code 1-14, 1-15, 5-1, 5-2, and 5-4.
	N. Conclusions and Recommended Conditions of Approval:
	The City Council is tasked with issuing a reasoned statement for its approval or denial of Applicant’s Rezone & DA Modification applications. Specifically, City Council must determine whether the application requests are “in harmony” or “in conflict” ...
	If the Council decides to deny the applications, State law requires the Council to identify what measures, if any, Applicant can take to gain approval.
	If Council is inclined to approve the applications, Planning Staff does not recommend any conditions of approval because any provisions that are necessary for future development are contained in the DA and/or handled by City Codes and Standards.
	Prepared by Middleton City Planner, Robert Stewart    Dated: 6/14/2021







